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Announcement of the Establishment of Cyberport

The Cyberport project was kicked off after the HKSAR Government
announced the provision of essential infrastructure for the establishment
of an organization offering a strategic cluster of information services.
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2001-03

Completion of Cyberport 1 & 2

2002

Arrival of Cyberport’s First Tenants
Microsoft moved into Cyberport in late 2002

as one of our first tenants. Mr Tung Chee Hwa,
Chief Executive of the HKSAR, met with Mr
Mark Phibbs, Managing Director of Microsoft
Hong Kong, prior to the tenancy agreement
signing ceremony and welcomed the company’s
move. The company has resided at Cyberport
since then.
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Discoverin :
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The Opening Ceremony on 27 June 2003 was officiated by Mr Jack
So, Deputy Chairman and Group Managing Director of PCCW; Mr
Henry Tang, Secretary for Commerce, Industry and Technology; and
Mr John Strickland, Chairman of Cyberport.
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Photo taken by Wen Wei Po

2004 A8 X E R

Opening of the Digital Media Centre

(Now the Technology Centre)

The Centre provides cutting-edge industry tools, knowledge and
support to content developers and multimedia professionals.

2004 HBEB O CRARE L) R
. PUORBBARREERSEBEZATREERNLNKIA
Completion of Cyberport 4 P T
The entire Cyberport commercial portion was
completed in mid-2004 with the end of construction
on the last office building, Cyberport 4. \
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2004

Opening of Le Méridien Cyberport
Opened 20 April 2004, the hotel was built to offer Cyberport guests unparalleled
high-tech services and 5-star hospitality.
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2005

Opening of the Cyberport Digital Entertainment
Incubation-cum-Training Centre (IncuTrain)
(Now the Entrepreneurship Centre)

The IncuTrain Centre opened in October 2005 to aid the ﬂ
development of Hong Kong's digital entertainment industry by

incubating Hong Kong start-up companies in relevant industries.
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2007 2009 2010

First in Asia Live Broadcast of 3D FIFA World Cup
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Cyberport DigitabEntertainment Incubgi ining Programme
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Kick-off Cen

::FI’:ISGt Deployment of Campus-wide tﬁu?ghr?f the Cyberport Creative Micro Fund (CCMF) Cyberport successfully broadcasted 18 matches of the

,r . llot scheme . 2010 FIFA World Cup in live 3D using the Digital Cinema
Cyberport provided IPv6-based network The CCMF Pilot Scheme offered start-up assistance of HK$100,000
3 . : ) ) A Exchange platform.
infrastructure to its tenants, to serve as in seed money to selected awardees, to spark innovative business

_ a research and development platform as concepts and product ideas. 2UNEREREBEIDERE
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2009

2006

First Deployment of Free Campus-wide
Wi-Fi

Cyberport established OpenWiFi, the first free
campus-wide Wi-Fi service in Hong Kong, making
Cyberport the first in Asia to have its whole facility

Signing of the Memorandum of Understanding with

New Zealand

Cyberport, the Internet Professional Association Limited, the Wellington City
Council, and the New Zealand Institute of Screen Innovation Limited paved
the way for collaborative opportunities in digital entertainment and creative

certified by the Intel Wi-Fi Certification Program. business.
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2010

Number of Incubatees

Reached 100

ZIEEATHEER 100
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The Signing of Memorandum of Understanding with
Knowledge and Innovation Community (KIC)

Cyberport and the Knowledge and Innovation Community (KIC) agreed

to increase exchange and interaction opportunities for Hong Kong and
Shanghai’s ICT businesses, to enhance business development and cross-border
collaboration.

B EBAIE R EBEEETS
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Delegation to the Shanghai World Expo

The Cyberport-led delegation showcased Hong Kong's latest ICT
developments, promoted digital entertainment, and visited Shanghai’s
high-tech communities to foster in-depth exchange and collaboration

opportunities with Mainland and overseas companies. \
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2012

Launch of the First Self-funded Incubation
Programme

Cyberport launched the self-funded Incubation
Programme and official CCMF Scheme to further spark
creativity and innovation in ICT industries.

2010

o (IS BIEEHE | ARG EaEHE
Investment of HK$100 Million in Hong Kong's HESBEBE BN [ BIEEEEE 2 MERMT [85S

ICT industries BIBSHMALES | E—SMBEEICTERNAFTBSE

Cyberport announced its plan to invest HK$100 million to boost local
ICT development over the next three years. Five centres were established
to facilitate the realization of the plan.

BRE—REBTEBEBICTERRR
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2011

Opening of the Cyberport Representative Office in
Shanghai

Established at Shanghai's Knowledge and Innovation Community (KIC),
the office helps Hong Kong's SMEs land and operate more effectively
in China’s competitive ICT market.

BHEELBARERS

FIHER LBRIE R B IRERE - UWRBEBF/NEEITABRF AR
BV BICT ™5 - AT LANERIEE -

Annual Report 2011/2012
E--ECT-CEER



Introducing the latest technology
for ICT development
BMSIARIRERM - EBICTRE

Overview
BEHHE

Fostering business collaboration for the ICT community
RIMREICTHENE R E -

e Facilitated over 2,000 events and activities with over 1,400,000 participants since 2002
e Received around 1,800 visits with over 35,000 visitors since 2002

o H2002 FRAEISERNMAEEEBE2,0005 K + 2MAHER 1405

Providing a self-sufficient community for ICT companies
BPBICTARRERETHENLE

Four Grade-A intelligent buildings with 100,000 m? of office space
One 27,000 m? retail complex and one 170-room hotel

MEAIEZ 108 RNRREERSTIZ
—BEEASE 2.7 BT R ARE B YR 0 R — A 170 R EHEE
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B 2002 F#E - BlFH/EEN% £ 1,800)% ¢ HAF#E 35,000 G55 F == =7

Launched the robust Digital Cinema Exchange in Hong
Kong in 2009
Delivered 51 live entertainment & sporting events from
around the world

FA2009 FHEHER [BUS B R BT A |
CDEES1SRAH RS R REESE REERE

Building a strong network for a thriving ICT industry
BMBICTEREYBEANERAE

Breeding the next generation of ICT entrepreneurs

e Active partnerships with over 100 industry associations, government bodies, academic ?ﬁﬂaﬁ ﬁj] i% E %ﬁ - 1‘% ICT .{E%é_"? s
institutions and commercial firms
e Received over 100 delegations from overseas and mainland China last year e HK$3.4 million to 34 microfunded projects since 2009, stimulating 431 ideas
o HI00ZMEAWE  BUTAEM  SMEENZHAMER T TYNEERR * Incubated 156 companies since 2005 with 103 intellectual properties, 83 awards
o EFEMFTHRIB100EEIN AL ERRE and HK$40 million investment funds granted

e B2009F M 34EEE A L ER340E AT > 313431 HAIZHA
e B2005FIFE T 156 AR - &HMBI103EAMERIEE @ #1583 E%E -
Wi EE B 4,000 858 7T
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ABOUT CYBERPORT

Cyberport is a creative digital community
with a cluster of technology and digital
content tenants. It is managed by Hong
Kong Cyberport Management Company
Limited which is wholly owned by the
Hong Kong SAR Government.

With a vision to establish itself as a
leading information and communications
technology (ICT) hub in the Asia-Pacific
region, Cyberport is committed to
facilitating the local economy by nurturing
ICT industry start-ups and entrepreneurs,
driving collaboration to pool resources
and create business opportunities, and

accelerating ICT adoption through strategic

initiatives and partnerships.

Equipped with an array of state-of-the-art
ICT facilities and a cutting-edge broadband
network, the Cyberport community is
home to four grade-A intelligent office
buildings, a five-star design hotel, and a
retail entertainment complex.

Hong Kong Cyberport Management Company Limited
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Establish Cyberport as

a "leading ICT hub in
Asia-Pacific region”

AR TE K R & 5 RSB ARHR
ERHBRTNRL -

Our Focus
B APTEY {58 ap 22 2

Cyberport is committed to

facilitating the local economy by:

Nurturing ICT industry start-
ups and entrepreneurs to
foster local talents;

Driving collaboration
through better utilization of
resources to create business
opportunities;

Accelerating ICT adoption
through strategic initiatives
and partnerships.
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Welcome to the first Annual Report of Hong Kong Cyberport
Management Company Limited (Cyberport). We are pleased
to take this opportunity to share with our stakeholders
Cyberport’s mission, vision and achievements to date. Hong
Kong is the perfect platform for developing the future of
information and communications technologies (ICT) that
increase the region’s competitiveness and efficiency. Cyberport
is proud to contribute to this dynamic sector by laying the
foundation to make IT legends come true.

I would like to thank our previous Chairman Mr John Strickland,
our former CEO Mr Nicholas Yang, our recently retired board
members Mr Anthony Au, Mr Rock Chen, Mr KO Chia, Mr
Peter Liu, Ms Winnie Ng and Mr Stanley Ying for their efforts
and leadership, particularly in preparing a strong foundation for
Cyberport’s future growth during its earliest years. This includes
overseeing the initial construction of its campus and later
development, ensuring a good mix of tenants, and bringing
together a competent team to manage the overall project.

Building upon its promising beginnings, Cyberport is now keen
to focus on its public mission. In order to make Hong Kong a
leading digital city, the government introduced the Digital 21
Strategy for the continued success of local ICT development.
By harnessing the region’s technological strengths, the strategy
hopes to advance the industry’s achievements and seize new
opportunities for growth. Based on the framework laid down
by the Digital 21 Strategy, Cyberport’s Board of Directors
held a workshop in 2010 to revisit our mission and vision, and
to develop strategies going forward. In December of the same
year, we announced a HK$100 million investment in ICT for
the next three years, reinforcing our great commitment to the
Hong Kong ICT sector, alongside our dedication towards its
development by providing vital resources.

Our organization-wide vision has clearly affirmed that
Cyberport was established to create a leading ICT hub
in the Asia-Pacific region. To this end, Cyberport is
committed to facilitating the economy with our three
focuses, by fostering local start-ups and entrepreneurs,
driving collaboration through better utilization of
resources, and accelerating ICT adoption via strategic
initiatives and partnerships.

To realize our vision of becoming an ICT hub in the Asia-Pacific
region, Cyberport established five interdependent centres

in September 2010, including Entrepreneurship Centre,
Collaboration Centre, Knowledge Centre, Technology Centre
and Campus Development Centre, each of which advances
our development in a specific area and helps us carry out our
three focuses.

Hong Kong Cyberport Management Company Limited
BRUBBEERRAF
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The Entrepreneurship Centre nurtures new ICT ventures by
offering financial assistance, support and professional services
that span the different stages of enterprise development. The
Centre is a breeding-ground for all kinds of creative ideas to
come true via our comprehensive Incubation Programme.

To fuel international collaboration and exchange of expertise,
the Collaboration Centre helps local ICT entrepreneurs
build networks with their mainland China and overseas
counterparts. The Centre opened its Shanghai representative
office inside the Knowledge and Innovation Community last
year to further assist Hong Kong's entrepreneurs to connect
with potential mainland partners and customers.

Driving Hong Kong's transformation into a digital economy,
the Knowledge Centre invests in local talent by building
growth opportunities on the ground. This is done through
organizing world-class networking platforms and training, as
well as creating more ICT-related positions and supporting its
adoption.

By bringing cutting-edge industry tools and knowledge to
Hong Kong, the Technology Centre diversifies the local
industry with global outlook and insight. The Centre will
further enhance its role in the adoption of state-of-the-art
technology in the streams of digital entertainment, social
media, cloud computing and mobility solution to better help
Hong Kong ICT start-ups capture growing opportunities.

All these initiatives are connected by the Campus
Development Centre, which oversees the management and
maintenance of the Cyberport Campus, providing state-of-
the-art facilities and a creative atmosphere for ICT companies
to thrive and grow.

Looking to the future, we will strive to continue the heartening
developments of the three-year plan, adding long term value
to the ICT industry, but more importantly, helping nurture,
promote and expand tomorrow’s leading ideas today.

The year 2012 marks an important milestone for the
company’s governance. The Board has initiated Cyberport

to be designated as a Public Body voluntarily under the
Prevention of Bribery Ordinance (POBO). With this new
arrangement, we are setting even higher standards for the
company and its employees. We believe that the new policies
and procedures we have put in place are certain to create
improved value for our stakeholders, from our partners to our
promising incubatees.
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An Executive Committee was established in 2003 to oversee
our development as an organization. To further strengthen
Cyberport’s corporate governance, we formed three new
committees in 2011. Our long-standing Executive Committee
is responsible for monitoring the performance of the
company, based on our mission and annual budget. The
Audit Committee oversees and reviews the effectiveness of
our financial reporting, internal control and risk management.
The Remuneration Committee makes recommendations

to the Board on all matters related to our organizational
structure and policies on staffing and remuneration.

Finally, the Entrepreneurship Centre Committee oversees

the administration and management of the programmes
implemented by the Entrepreneurship Centre.

At the beginning of last year, our management team proposed
Project 12, to serve as the change agent in order to ensure
legal and regulatory compliance, manage the company’s risks
and deliver the new company mission. We have identified 12
key areas which need to be addressed in the short-term, by
the end of 2012, in order to ensure that Cyberport is in proper
shape to move forward and effectively achieve the company’s
objects.

This significant evolution will enable us to expand into more
up-and-coming fields within the ICT sector, and build a
thriving, competitive industry as a whole.

In the coming sections of this Annual Report, Mr Herman
Lam, our CEO, will share the highlights of the encouraging
results we have achieved this year. The seeds we have sown
have borne auspicious fruit, capped by numerous local and
international accolades, proving that we have in Hong Kong
the ambition, capability and drive to make IT legends happen.

Last but not least, | would like to welcome our new members
Ms Rosanna Choi, Mr Daniel Lai, Mr Gabriel Pang, Mr Douglas
So, Mr Alfred Wong, Mr Peter Yan and Ms Jeny Yeung to the
Board. Their experiences and ideas will certainly add value to
the discussion. | would also like to take this chance to thank
all of our current board members, our management team,
various committee members, our tenants, incubatees and the
participants of our numerous events as well as our partners
and allies. It is their contributions that continue to drive the
growth of Cyberport, and their dedication to making dreams
come true that inspires us. | strongly believe that we will

play an active role in the development of Hong Kong's ICT
community, centred on the extraordinary creativity of the
people of Hong Kong.

Paul CHOW Man-yiu, css, sss, p
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Chairman,
Hong Kong Cyberport Management Company Limited
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Hong Kong Cyberport Management Company Limited
BEBBEEEERDAA

The Cyberport community represents a thriving gathering

of dynamic and creative ICT talents, and together, we build
on each other’s strengths to create Hong Kong's IT legends.
As of March 2012, the 113 companies based at Cyberport
represent a great variety of enterprises from internationally
renowned companies to home-grown SMEs, with over 5,000
people employed at the Cyberport campus in Hong Kong. Our
Entrepreneurship Centre has supported 156 start-ups through
the Incubation Programme and 34 ICT projects through the
Cyberport Creative Micro Fund (CCMF). Last year, Cyberport
hosted a total of 72 knowledge-sharing and ICT-related
conferences and events, which attracted over 15,800 industry
professionals and experts.

Each of our five centres plays a unique role in ensuring

this collaborative success, while systematically working in
tandem as an effective management team. This year, our
Entrepreneurship Centre continued to administer the
CCMF, which sparks creativity and innovation in the ICT
industry by providing seed funding for concept and prototype
development. As of March 2012, a total of HK$3.4 million

in funding has been granted to 34 unique projects that
demonstrated high potential for growth. Through the fund,
Cyberport also initiated the pioneering Hong Kong-Shenzhen
Cyberport Creative Micro Fund Young Entrepreneur
Programme (HK-SZ CCMF-YEP) to provide a platform for
Hong Kong students to gain mainland experience early in their
entrepreneurship journey.

On the topic of nurturing up-and-coming talent, our Incubation
Programmes continue to bear promising fruit. As of March
2012, Cyberport's incubated companies have been granted

a total of 103 intellectual properties. Together, they have
garnered 83 local and international awards — earning well-
deserved recognition for their efforts. All of this points to
even more encouraging successes for these start-ups as they
move forward. The achievements gained thus far are only the
beginning for these future IT legends. These entrepreneurs
will continue to grow and will become great role models and
resources for the coming generations of entrepreneurs.
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER'S REVIEW 1TEARH R E

This year also marks a series of firsts for Cyberport. Our new
Collaboration Centre began operations in April 2011, paving
the way to increase networking opportunities with overseas ICT
firms. Their global insight and expertise are sure to boost our
companies’ exposure and experience. In April 2011, we built a
partnership with the Shanghai Knowledge and Innovation
Community (KIC), and in August 2011, we set up our

first representative office in Shanghai and organized an ICT
delegation to visit Canada. These new links form vital stepping
stones onto the international and mainland Chinese markets for
our ICT entrepreneurs. In Hong Kong, we will also continue to
work closely with our counterparts, including government and
semi-government bodies such as Create Hong Kong, Innovation
and Technology Commission, Invest Hong Kong, Hong Kong
Applied Science and Technology Research Institute, Hong Kong
Productivity Council, Hong Kong Science and Technology Parks,
Hong Kong Trade Development Council, and the Office of the
Government Chief Information Officer, as well as numerous ICT
associations and universities, to better position Hong Kong as a
leading ICT hub.

Another highlight was the launch of the Hong Kong-Shanghai
ICT Internship Programme in June 2011. This first attempt
by the Knowledge Centre showcases our dedication to
nurturing ICT talents at their earliest stage, by offering university
students in Hong Kong the opportunity to gain work experience
in multi-national corporations such as EMC, IBM and Microsoft
in Shanghai. In addition to the internship programme, the
Centre continued to actively organize and support regional
ICT conferences and events. These efforts have helped

to make Cyberport a leading destination for top events in the
ICT industry, and renowned ICT organizations are increasingly
choosing Cyberport to stage their prestigious annual events.
Some prominent examples include the Hong Kong Association
for Computer Education’s IT Challenge Award cum Young IT
Ambassador Award 2010-2011 Prize Presentation Ceremony,
Hong Kong Computer Society’s Networking Reception: A
Dialogue with Three Distinguished ClOs in Hong Kong, Internet
Society Hong Kong's IPv6-related conferences and training,
Hong Kong Internet Registration Corporation Limited’s “2011
Digital Marketplace — Use of Internet to Hedge against
Inflation” Conference, Hong Kong ICT Awards Judging Sessions,
the Hong Kong Council of Social Service's ITRC Forum 2011,
Cyberport SIGGRAPH Asia 2011 Networking Reception and

the Radio Television Hong Kong's Robocon 2011 Hong Kong
Contest. We also organized community visits to educate

the general public about the latest innovations in IT, laying the
groundwork for expanding industry opportunities.

Hong Kong Cyberport Management Company Limited
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Taking these knowledge-sharing initiatives further, our
Technology Centre connects the latest ICT tools with our daily
lives, demonstrating their benefits in tangible yet imaginative
ways. A recent example was the first screening in Asia of the
Wimbledon games in 3D via the Digital Cinema Exchange
platform, bringing a popular sport to digital life. The Centre has
also made a number of advances in Digital Content Transfer,
Stereoscopic 3D, Cloud Computing, Social Media and
Mobile Applications, which we will discuss in detail in later
chapters.

Here at Cyberport, we are grateful for these exciting new
directions, buoyed by the strategic support and state-of-the-
art facilities available on our campus. Over the past year, the
Campus Development Centre has played a key role in
backing our unigue mix of tenants, while the Smart-Space @
Cyberport programme has attracted potential ICT companies
and start-ups from all around the world to begin their journey
of success.
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We have closely collaborated with our tenants on
numerous projects which not only benefited Cyberport but
also brought tenants together as part of the Cyberport family.
For instance, we were assisted in developing the Cyberport
website, one of the first barrier-free and W3C-AA compliant
websites in Hong Kong, by our tenant Access Testing.
Another tenant, Better Generation, developed the 10 Power
Predictors installed around the campus to collect wind and
solar data to enable us to assess the feasibility of using more
renewable energy options as we continue to seek to improve
our Carbon Footprint. In addition, the LEAD@Cyberport
Creative Summer Programme, featuring a range of creative
activities in Cyberport for both children and parents, was

a collaboration between Hong Kong Federation of Youth
Groups Jockey Club LEAD Centre and Cyberport.

As our Chairman has pointed out, our priority now is to improve
the efficiency of our operation while ensuring compliance in the
face of our recent transformation. In response to this need, our
management put forward a “Project 12", proposing 12 projects
to address the more pressing issues by the end of 2012. These
projects include: Documented Management System, Finance
System Upgrade, Human Resources System Upgrade, Facilities
Management System Upgrade, Customer Records Management
System, Enhance Internal Audit, Enhance Our People, Enhance
Compliance, Enhance Corporate Secretary Function, Website
Revamp, Office Renovation and issuing our first Annual Report.
With the Project 12, we aim to establish a more stable platform
to deliver our public mission initiatives by improving our working
life and ability to deliver our missions with good corporate
governance.

For the 2011/ 12 financial year, our total revenue amounted
to HK$414.7 million, representing an increase of

about 4.3% over that of 2010/ 11. Operating profit before
depreciation and tax was HK$76.2 million in 2011/ 12,
representing a slight drop of 5.4% over that of 2010/ 11
because of an increase in expenditure on delivering public
mission activities during the year. Excluding Cyberport’s
contribution to public mission activities, operating profit before
depreciation and tax grew 5.9%, to HK$103.4 million.
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Cyberport’s contribution to public mission activities including
in-kind sponsorship in 2011/ 12 was HK$34 million, compared
with HK$23.9 million in 2010/ 11.

Looking ahead, Cyberport has identified four upcoming fields
within the ICT arena that show immense potential for further
business development - Digital Entertainment, Social
Media, Cloud Computing and Mobility Solution. We
have based our three-year plan on these key areas to invest
resources in nurturing new talent, industry collaboration

and the accelerated adoption of related information and
communication technologies.

As an active member of the digital creative industry, we will
continue to strive not only to enhance Hong Kong's status
as a hub for ICT in the Asia-Pacific region, but also as a
responsible contributor to society. We are committed
to enhancing environmental protection and sustainable
development, caring for the communities we work in and
investing in our staff’s on-going development.

Our management team owes a debt of thanks to our tenants,
the Board, our partners and allies, as well as to the entire staff
for their continuous support and commitment over the past
year. |look forward to an even more successful year of 2012/
2013.

Herman LAM Heung-yeung
Chief Executive Officer,
Hong Kong Cyberport Management Company Limited
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CHAIRMAN

Paul CHOW Man Yiu, css, ses,

Chairman of Hong Kong Cyberport Management
Company Limited

Mr Paul Chow retired as the Chief Executive and director

of Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited in January
2010. Prior to this, he was the Chief Executive, Asia Pacific
(ex-Japan) Region, of HSBC Asset Management (Hong Kong)
Limited from April 1997 to April 2003.

Mr Chow is currently an independent non-executive director
of the Bank of China Limited, a member of the Council and
the Court of the University of Hong Kong and its Treasurer, a
member of the Court of the Hong Kong University of Science
and Technology, a member of the Steering Committee on
Innovation and Technology of the HKSAR Government, a
member of the Hong Kong-Taiwan Business Cooperation
Committee of the HKSAR Government, a member of the Asian
Advisory Committee of AustralianSuper Pty. Ltd. and Chairman
of a charitable organization, Plan International Hong Kong.

BOARD MEMBERS

Rosanna CHOI Y| Tak (Appointed on 5 June 2012)

Partner of CWCC

Miss Rosanna Choi, the Past Chairman of ACCA Hong Kong,
has been serving the global body for professional accountants
as a Hong Kong Committee member since 2002. She is
currently a member of the ACCA (Global) Council and the
Vice-chairperson of its Resource Oversight Committee.

Miss Choi is a CWCC CPA partner and audit specialist,
leading one of the audit teams. She chairs the firm’s Training
Committee and IT Committee, enhancing staff skills and
productivity, and the effective use of information technology.

She is also an executive committee member of Social Venture
Hong Kong, a council member of Hong Kong Baptist
University, a court member of the City University of Hong
Kong, and an audit committee member of the Urban Renewal
Authority.
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George HONGCHOY Kwok Lung

Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer of The
Link Management Limited

Mr George Hongchoy is Executive Director and Chief Executive
Officer of The Link Management Limited, with experience in
investment banking, financial consulting and accounting in
Asia and New Zealand. Mr Hongchoy is a director of Hong
Kong Applied Science and Technology Research Institute
Company Limited, Asia Pacific Real Estate Association Limited
and the Chairman of its Hong Kong Chapter Board. He is
also a member of the Asia Executive Board of The Wharton
School, the Faculty Advisory Committee of Faculty of Business
at The Hong Kong Polytechnic University and Governor of the
Canadian International School.

Herman HU Shao Ming, &ss »

Chairman of Ryoden Development Limited

Mr Herman Hu is the Chairman of Ryoden Development
Limited. He serves as a Standing Committee Member of the
Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference, Shanghai.
Apart from this, he is a member of the Hong Kong Sports
Commission, Council on Human Reproductive Technology
and as an Independent Non-Executive Director of i-CABLE
Communications Limited.

Daniel LA|, BBS, JP (Appointed on 25 July 2012)

Government Chief Information Officer

Mr Daniel Lai is a veteran ICT professional in Hong Kong with
extensive experience in the IT field. He joined the HKSAR
Government as Government Chief Information Officer in
January 2012.

Mr Lai served in Hong Kong Electric Company Limited between
1968 and 1978. From 1978 to 1998, he worked for the Hong
Kong Jockey Club (the former Royal Hong Kong Jockey Club)
and held various senior IT managerial positions in Hong Kong
and Australia. Between 1999 to 2011, Mr Lai worked as the
Head of Information Technology in MTR Corporation Limited.

He served on the Board of Hong Kong Cyberport Management
Company Limited from 2003 to 2009.
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LEE Shing See, ass, ost,

Mr Lee Shing See is a fellow of both the Hong Kong Institution
of Engineers and the Institution of Civil Engineers (UK), as well
as a former Secretary for Works of the HKSAR Government.
He is the Chairman of the Construction Industry Council, a
Board member of the Hong Kong Airport Authority, a member
of the Environmental Impact Assessment Appeal Panel, a
member of the Development Committee of the West Kowloon
Cultural District Authority and the Convenor of the Panel on
Promoting Testing and Certification Services in Construction
Materials Trade.

Gabriel PANG Tsz Kit (Appointed on 5 June 2012)

Chief Operating Officer of Firedog Studio Company
Limited

Mr Gabriel Pang is currently the Chief Operating Officer

of Firedog Studio Company Limited and has more than 16
years of experience in IT and Creative industries in Hong
Kong. Mr Pang is one of the pioneers in Hong Kong’s game
development field, and founded the famous game company
“Firedog Studio” in 1999. He has been the chairman of Hong
Kong Digital Entertainment Association since 2008, and puts a
lot of efforts in promoting Hong Kong's digital entertainment
industry.

Douglas SO Cheung Tak (Appointed on 5 June 2011)
Executive Director, Charities/ General Counsel of The
Hong Kong Jockey Club

Mr Douglas So is a solicitor of Hong Kong. He joined The
Hong Kong Jockey Club in 2000 and currently serves as
its Executive Director of Charities, General Counsel and
Company Secretary.

Mr So is a Council member of the Hong Kong Committee for
UNICEF; a member of the Board of Trustees of the Hong Kong
Jockey Club Music and Dance Fund, a director of Chun Tok
School and an adviser of Foodlink.

Mr So is also a member of the Community Care Fund (Welfare)
Committee, the Committee on Research and Development of
Chinese Medicines, the Selection Committee of Innovation and
Technology Scholarship Award Scheme, the EXCEL3 Advisory
Committee of the University of Hong Kong, the Steering
Committee of CUHK Jockey Club Initiative Gaia and the
Management Committee of the Jockey Club Design Institute
for Social Innovation of the Hong Kong Polytechnic University.
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Elizabeth TSE Man Yee, »

Permanent Secretary for Financial Services and the
Treasury (Treasury)

Miss Elizabeth Tse was Deputy Secretary for the Treasury
(later renamed Deputy Secretary for Financial Services and the
Treasury (Treasury)) from July 1999 to April 2006, Director of
Administration from April 2006 to October 2007, Permanent
Secretary of the Chief Executive's Office from October 2007
to April 2010 and Permanent Secretary for Commerce and
Economic Development (Communications and Technology)
from 26 April 2010 to 24 July 2012. She has taken up the
appointment of Permanent Secretary for Financial Services and
the Treasury (Treasury) since 25 July 2012.

Alfred WONG KWOk Kuen (Appointed on 1 March 2012)

Mr Alfred Wong was the Chief Technology Officer and Head
of Information Technology Division of Hong Kong Exchanges
and Clearing Limited (HKEx) since April 2004 until he retired
in September 2010. Earlier in his career, Mr Wong had held
several other senior IT positions at the HKEx and the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong since rejoining the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong in November 1992. Mr Wong was a project leader
at the Australian Stock Exchange and a consultant application
engineer at Australia’s Westpac Banking Corporation between
1987 and 1992.

WONG Sau Ying

Head of Corporate Communications of the Hong Kong &
China Gas Company Limited

Miss Wong Sau Ying's extensive experience as a social worker,
journalist and corporate communication professional is
reflected in the variety of public and committee boards she
serves. Alongside a media career that has spanned major local
and foreign news agencies, Miss \WWong was a board member
of the Broadcasting Authority from September 2007 to March
2012 and is currently a member of Environmental Campaign
Committee.

She is currently Head of Corporate Communications with the
Hong Kong and China Gas Company Limited.
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Peter YAN Klng Shun (Appointed on 5 June 2011)
Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer of
Computer and Technologies Holdings Limited

Mr Peter Yan is the Executive Director and Chief Executive
Officer of Computer and Technologies Holdings Limited,
where he is responsible for the group’s overall business
operations covering Hong Kong and the mainland China.

With extensive experience serving on a range of public services
committees, including the Transport Advisory Committee

and the Solicitors Disciplinary Tribunal Panel, Mr Yan is also

a member of the Scholarship Vetting Committee of Harvard
Business School Andy Choa Scholarship, the Advisory
Committee for the Master of Science in Information and
Technology Management at The Chinese University of Hong
Kong and a life-time Fellow and Vice President of the Hong
Kong Computer Society.

Jeny YEUNG Mei Chun (Appointed on 5 June 2012)
Commercial Director of the MTR Corporation Limited
Miss Jeny Yeung is the Commercial Director and a Member of
the Executive Directorate of MTR Corporation Limited. Miss
Yeung is a fellow of the Chartered Institute of Marketing. She
is also a member of the Marketing Management Committee
of The Hong Kong Management Association, the Advisory
Committee on Publicity and Public Education in Innovation and
Technology of the Innovation and Technology Commission

of the HKSAR, and the Infrastructure Development Advisory
Committee of Hong Kong Trade Development Council.
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RETIRED/ RESIGNED DIRECTORS
Anthony AU Wai Hung, sss (etired on 4 June 2012)

Director of Futuresuccess Consultants Limited

Mr Anthony Au has long been recognized as one of Hong
Kong’s leading authorities on information technology and was
awarded The Bronze Bauhinia Star by the HKSAR Government
in 2000 for his notable contribution to the advancement of
Hong Kong as a leading IT city.

Mr Au graduated from Rochester Institute of Technology. He
worked for Xerox, National Semiconductor, PATEL and other
technology companies before starting his software company
ABC Data & Telecom Limited in 1978. Mr Au sold his business
in 1999 to focus on his new work in futurology. He is the
Representative of World Future Society in Hong Kong and the
Regional Editor of Futuretakes. Mr Au also serves as a director
of Hong Kong Applied Science and Technology Research
Institute Company Limited.

Rock CHEN Chung Nin, sss, i etired on 4 June 2011)
Chairman of Pacific Falcon Investment Group Limited

Mr Rock Chen is the Chairman of Pacific Falcon Investment
Group Limited which is engaged in proprietary asset
management, venture and real estate investments. Established
in 1995, the company maintains a global investment portfolio
that allocates assets among fixed income securities, equities,
specialized funds, precious metals and properties.

Mr Chen also spends a significant amount of time in public
and community services. In addition to being the incumbent
Chairman of the Hong Kong Examinations and Assessment
Authority and Chairman of the Hong Kong Award for Young
People, he has served on more than a dozen government
statutory and advisory bodies such as the Central Policy Unit,
the Town Planning Board, City University of Hong Kong and
the Standing Committee on Company Law Reform, etc. Mr
Chen is a Justice of the Peace since 2007 and was awarded
the Bronze Bauhinia Star by the HKSAR Government for his
meritorious contribution to community services in 2011.

In China, he is currently the Vice-chairman of the All-China
Youth Federation and a Standing Committee member of the
Zhejiang Committee of Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference.
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CHIA KOk Onn (Retired on 4 June 2011)

Mr Chia Kok Onn brings more than 30 years of diverse
experience as venture capitalist, entrepreneur and corporate
executive having worked internationally across Asia, Europe
and U.S. Currently he serves on various committees,
including the HKSAR Government’s Community Investment &
Inclusion Fund (CIIF) to promote social capital for community
revival; President of the HK Venture Capital & Private Equity
Association (HKVCPEA) and Chairman of Advisory Board,
College of International Education at Hong Kong Baptist
University.

He holds an MBA from Strathclyde University, Scotland, DipMS
from Edinburgh Napier University, Scotland and BEng (Hons)
Electronics Engineering from Sheffield University, England. He
is also a Fellow of Hong Kong Institute of Directors.

Peter LIU Yun Kwan (Retired on 4 June 2011)

Mr Peter Liu was the Chief Information Officer of BOC Hong
Kong (Holdings) Limited and Bank of China (Hong Kong)
Limited from 2005 to 2009. Mr Liu has more than 36 years
of experience in IT and financial services. He was previously
Sector Head — Business Consulting Services (Financial Services
Sector) of IBM China/Hong Kong Limited. Mr Liu had also
acted as Regional COO of UBS Investment Bank, Managing
Director and Asia Pacific COO of UBS Private Banking and
Global Business Technology Head of UBS Private Banking for
Asia, USA and UK. Prior to joining UBS, Mr Liu was a Vice
President with Chase Manhattan Bank, N.A. and also had
held other senior positions in information technology, banking
operations and business management at Citibank, Hong Kong
Productivity Council and John Swire & Sons (Hong Kong)
Limited.
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Winnie J NG (Retired on 4 June 2012)

Director of The Kowloon Motor Bus Company (1933)
Limited

Miss Winnie Ng is a director of Transport International
Holdings Limited and The Kowloon Motor Bus Company
(1933) Limited, and is also Founder and Deputy Chairman of
RoadShow Holdings Limited. Miss Ng has received numerous
awards and recognition. In 2010, she was named a Woman
of Excellence and was also selected as one of 60 Meritorious
Chinese Entrepreneurs with Achievement and National
Contribution. She was also the Yazhou Zhoukan Young
Chinese Entrepreneur Award recipient in 2003.

Active in public service, Miss Ng is a Council member of The
Better Hong Kong Foundation, Vice Chairman and Director of
Friends of Bauhinia, a Board member of Hospital Authority, a
Board member of Hong Kong Tourism Board, a Board member
of Employees Retraining Board and a Council member of
Vocational Training Council.

Miss Ng holds an MBA degree from the University of Chicago
and an MPA degree from Harvard University.

Stanley YING Yiu Hong, JP (Resigned on 24 July 2012)

Mr Stanley Ying has joined the Administrative Service of the
Government of the Hong Kong since 1983 and has served
in various bureaus and departments. He was Permanent
Secretary for Financial Services and the Treasury (Treasury)
from November 2007 to July 2012.
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World Summit Award Grand

Jury and Conference

At the World Summit Award Grand Jury and
Conference, international IT experts were
brought together to select the best e-content
and ICT applications submitted from over
105 countries.
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Signed Memorandum of
Understanding with China
Cloud Tech

Cyberport CEO Mr Herman Lam

and Dr Zhang Fubo, CTO of China
Cloud Tech, signed a Memorandum
of Understanding to promote the
advancement of cloud computing and
collaboration between Hong Kong
and Mainland China.
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Fly High with Cyberport: From
Nurturing to Collaboration Ceremony
Eight growth-stage companies graduated from
the Cyberport IncuTrain Programme and five start-

ups received seed funding of HK$100,000 each C .

from the second Cyberport Creative Micro Fund
(CCMF) Pilot Scheme. The event was well-attended
by prominent leaders in the ICT industry and
government of the HKSAR.
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Hong Kong-Shanghai ICT
Internship Programme 2011
Students participating in the Programme
gathered at a sharing session to share their
rewarding work experience in Shanghai.
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The Hong Kong Save the
Sharks Campaign

At Cyberport, “1,000 Kids One Message”
featured a thousand children pledging to
promote global marine conservation and
abstain from eating shark fins.
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The First Hong Kong Stereoscopic 3D
Competition

The competition was organized by Cyberport to
encourage local production of high quality S3D
content, and promote Hong Kong as a leading
digital entertainment hub.
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2011/ 12 EVENTS AND ACTIVITIES HIGHLIGHTS 2011/ 12 £ & &85l

Summer Visits to
Cyberport for Students
Student groups attended fun
technology-based summer camps at
Cyberport and enjoyed themselves
thoroughly.

BB EGELEESE
BAEBREFEE2 N RRAE
BES%] B+ RARES
BRI ARG BB,

HK ICT Delegation to

Canada

Cyberport's delegation to Canada sought
to explore technical exchanges and
collaborative opportunities with Canada'’s
ICT industry. The delegation also visited
SIGGRAPH 2011 and a number of ICT
companies in Vancouver and Alberta.
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“Cyberport Speaker Series — The Birth
of A New Medium in Hong Kong:
Digital Audio Broadcasting” Seminar
Mr Mark O. Clift, COO of Cyberport, delivered
opening remarks at this seminar covering the
latest developments, challenges and opportunities
in DAB technology, and future market trends in
the audio broadcasting marketplace.
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“Looking for an Angel”

Seminar

Organized by the Entrepreneurship Centre,
the seminar invited Mr Raiyo Nariman,

/
K

7

///// 7 Regional Manager Angels Den Hong Kong
"///If/WM/I/ and Macau, to share tips and advice on

seeking funding from an angel investor.

[Looking for an Angel | ff 51 &
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Den /& B 1b [& 4% 32 Raiyo Nariman 5¢ 4 £2
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y 20U ) Cyberport SIGGRAPH Asia
%} P Networking Reception

% Cyberport’s incubatees and participants
¢///’) in the First Hong Kong Stereoscopic 3D
//// (&= 7 Competition were among the 1,200
Lo attendees of the networking reception,

where they rubbed shoulders with

sponsors, overseas delegates, conference

participants and digital entertainment
professionals from around the world.
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Weekend Market

Families and kids enjoyed interactive
art installations, as well as local
handicrafts and foods, at the
Weekend Market, held each month
between September 2011 and March
2012 on the Cyberport Podium.
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Next Generation Information
Technology and Standard
Symposium

At the Symposium, industry professionals
3D Competition are shown here at

learnt the latest cloud solutions
Cyberport's Animation Camp plying their

Y 777777 showcased by more than 30 exhibitors, /\
skills. Participants had the opportunity to in addition to insights gained from

/,’/

7

(200 Animation Camp
/, Winners of the First Hong Kong Stereoscopic

/}} '
(15
V),

N

////////”/W////// learn from world leaders in 3D animation, discussion panels on developmentsin -
including Lucasfilm Singapore, Pixar cloud computln.g,.standards and related
Animation Studios and Rising Sun Pictures. govemmentpolides. T
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100 Cyberport Road, Hong Kong L BB 2111110281104
Tel: (852) 3166 3800 & 5E: (852) 3166 3800
Fax: (852) 3166 3118 | & :(852) 3166 3118
Email: enquiry@cyberport.hk ! . F#: enquiry@cyberport.hk
Website: www.cyberport.hk | #484F : www.cyberport.hk
Shanghai Representative Office L EERRE

Unit 2048, 2/F, 1 KIC, KIC Plaza, 234 Song Hu Road,
Yang Pu District, Shanghai, PRC

Tel: (86-21) 55122815

Fax: (86-21) 55122816
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5 Centres’ Highlights

EFRYE KF O

To realise our vision of becoming an ICT hub
in the Asia-Pacific region, Cyberport has
established five interdependent centres,
each of which advances our development

in a specific area and helps us carry out our
three focuses: nurture ICT industry start-ups
and entrepreneurs to foster local talent; drive
collaboration through better utilisation of
resources to create business opportunities;
accelerate ICT adoption through strategic
initiatives and partnerships.
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5 CENTRES’ HIGHLIGHTS &MHEKH 0

Hong Kong Cyberport Management Company Limited
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ENTREPRENEURSHIP

CENTRE
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Mission

e Foster ICT industry development and promote ICT
entrepreneurship.

e Assist ICT entrepreneurs in the commercialization of
products, services and platforms.

e Groom and develop local ICT talents as part of
Cyberport’s larger mission to promote ICT development
within Hong Kong.

The mission of Cyperport’s Entrepreneurship Centre is to
nurture ICT start-ups through financial assistance, support
and professional services offered during the early stages of
commercial development. These aims are achieved primarily
through the Cyberport Creative Micro Fund Scheme and the
Incubation Programme.

The Entrepreneurship Centre, formerly known as the
Cyberport Digital Entertainment Incubation-cum-Training
Centre (IncuTrain Centre), was established in October 2005 to
support the development of start-ups and SMEs in the digital
entertainment and creative lifestyle industries. Originally
sponsored by the Innovation and Technology Fund (ITF), the
Incubation Programme has been supported by Cyberport
through its own funding since February 2012.

£ an

o REICTITENBBEIHEREICTRIER
o

o ZEICTTEMDER #EHER -
BERFEESHETS -

o BIFUIEBAMICTITEMAL » HSH
AEAENRBEARNBERNERE -

CEZRPLANTESEBREVKRE
B BRIEUARSBEERYE  BiR
EEERAA  HESHCTRSLEESH
Bl BAT ALEEERE[EIEBEIEMN
AES | HERIBEEEFTE] EE
fFam o

EBRRER LG A [ S8 SRt
BEBEIH L] B20059F 10 B AL LA
o —EHBAOKBESDEMP /PR D
¥ RENBHEGRELEISETESE
EPRE M BB EEENE | RVE
Bl R R E S (TR EBY AL - st
LB  BAEAERTFEB 2012924
HIR B BB T E B EEE -

Annual Report 2011/2012 43
E--ECT-CEER





5 CENTRES' HIGHLIGHTS FHM#yE KA

ENTREPRENEURSHIP CENTRE £ %% R0

CYBERPORT CREATIVE MICRO FUND

Launched in August 2009, the Cyberport Creative Micro

Fund (CCMF) Scheme promotes innovation within the ICT
industry by providing seed funding of HK$100,000 to cover
concept and prototype development over a 6-month period

to companies spearheading the development of creative ICT-
related products or services. Upon the successful completion
of the first pilot scheme launched in 2009, CCMF was officially
launched in 2011.

As of March 2012, CCMF has granted a total of HK$3.4
million to 34 projects which demonstrated potential for
further development. Some projects supported by CCMF were
subsequently procured by major overseas enterprises. These
include a management system for sports activities, acquired

by a major US manufacturer of sports equipment and apparel,
and a website for searching leisure events and activities based
on users’ personal interests and schedules, obtained by a
multinational Internet corporation.

Some CCMF projects have received international recognition,
such as a system to track shipments, which won the 2011
Global Startup Battle held by Startup Weekend in US, and

an online discussion platform, winner of the Start-Up Chile
programme held by the Chilean Government. Many CCMF
grantees intend to grow their projects into formal businesses
and subsequently joined Cyberport Incubation Programme.

3.4 million (HK$) granted to 34 projects in total
M34EEESHE340EE T

431 ideas stimulated
5|ZH 431 AR EfM =

CCMF Fast Facts (As of March 2012) CCMF &3 &8 (8 £201253 8)
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18 awardees successfully completed their projects (success rate of 95%)

18EZEBERDTEREABIEE (I EEI5%)

9 awardees subsequently joined the Cyberport Incubation Programme

BRTHAIEZERERRMAT [BIBEE AT

HONG KONG-SHENZHEN CYBERPORT
CREATIVE MICRO FUND YOUNG
ENTREPRENEUR PROGRAMME

In addition to the CCMF Scheme for local talent, a cross-
border scheme, the Hong Kong-Shenzhen Cyberport Creative
Micro Fund Young Entrepreneur Programme (HK-SZ CCMF-
YEP) launched in May 2011 to promote ICT entrepreneurship
and collaboration among tertiary students in Hong Kong and
Shenzhen. Students from both cities work together in mixed
teams to create innovative projects or business concepts for an
award of HK$100,000.

The HK-SZ CCMF-YEP, apart from helping young and creative
talent develop the technical and business skills required

to capture the soaring potential in the ICT industry today,
serves as an excellent platform to drive collaboration
between Hong Kong and Shenzhen'’s future leaders.
The programme also provides young entrepreneurs a great
opportunity to learn about cross-border cultures, prepare
themselves to enter into the Mainland market, and gain
practical start-up experience.

As of March 2012, HK-SZ CCMF-YEP has attracted over 100
participants from Hong Kong and mainland China.

THE INCUBATION PROGRAMME

Through the Incubation Programme, the Entrepreneurship
Centre supports the development of Hong Kong's ICT
industry by providing incubatees with access to rent-free
office space for up to two years, advanced ICT facilities and
resources; support in business development, financing and
the hiring of graduate interns; and mentorship and training
in entrepreneurship and technology. The programme offers
three types of incubation, on-site, off-site and network,
according to the needs of the business requesting incubation.

The innovation and creativity of the start-up companies under
the Incubation Programmes will drive new momentum in
the development of Hong Kong's ICT industry. The
focus is on assisting creative start-ups, fostering enterprise
management skills, building and promoting entrepreneurship,
and encouraging development and strengthening industry
networks both in mainland China and overseas markets.
Start-up companies can also expand their business potential
and explore greater opportunities via business partnership and
investment matching tools that the Programme provides.
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As of March 2012, the Incubation Programme has admitted
156 ICT start-ups, of which 84 are on-site incubatees, and 72
are off-site incubatees. These incubatees have created 689
job opportunities, won 83 industry awards, and created
over 100 intellectual properties.

As of March 2012, Cyberport’s incubatees received over
HK$40 million in angel investment funding.

156 companies admitted
BBk 156 A T

103 Intellectual Properties granted to incubatees
ZIEB AR HFAZ 103 BARERES

83 awards granted to incubatees
XA N ElE RS 83 ERIE

67% sustainability rate
TERET BN ER B REI%

CYBERPORT NETWORK INCUBATION
PROGRAMME

In July 2011, the Board of Cyberport approved a management
proposal to extend the existing Incubation Programme to
support overseas start-ups with fewer than 50 employees
under a new category called Network Incubation.

This new network category provides financial subsidies so

that overseas start-ups can attend Cyberport organized or co-
organized events in Hong Kong, and supports their efforts to
explore business networking with Cyberport incubatees and to
extend their businesses in the Asian region.

Incubation Programme Fast Facts (as of March 2012) E#&#1Z
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The network category offers the potential to further enhance
the Incubation Programme to serve both the local and overseas
incubatees, extending business networking opportunities and
allowing both to further exchange their ideas and explore
market opportunities.

As of March 2012, a total of 11 companies were admitted into
the Network Incubation Programme.

MAJOR EVENTS AND ACTIVITIES

The Centre has organized/ co-organized a wide variety of
events to further its mission of helping businesses in the ICT
industry, network, collaborate to their mutual benefit, and
reach out to potential investors.

BHREBRIBAEEROBEES - 58I
IR A RBIMERE RARINIE - RE
A RBINR R - WG INEB A
e - KRB RETIHEE -

HE2012F38  BBEZETEEHK
THEINMERRA -

EXEEEE

EFRTOER LG T ERABENE
B REICTEEZRANGE EYESE
ENMEREAER  XHBeMBEEZE
ERREE  E—FEBRATLHESICT
ERERMED

Startups Connect
This monthly networking

event brings together start-ups

and incubatees with industry
professionals and Cyberport alumni
to explore ICT-relevant topics across
different sectors.

EISABRIERE

AT AR ERMES Startups
Connect ' RS - FIFE QA
E¥RESREBEHEINEERARESE
—%  HRARITRRROICTEE -
REDEZ HMRREE -
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e Engine Tra

R 7 AR
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Creative Technologies
Workshop by Cyberport and
WelTec - “He Mohiotanga -
Sharing of Knowledge”

The first Creative Technologies Workshop
challenged students to explore sculptural
design through digital projections, 2D and 3D
animation, digital graphics, etc., and recreate
sculptures for a cultural exchange.

HRERARMRBERMEBR
AR [AIERR ITHEL - [EE]
WS RAT R A AR RR AN 2B EE
[AIERHR T RS ) - REBFAMBREY - 20
RIDHE - HIEE GRS KRR -
HRIL R F L SOR -

Hong Kong Cyberport Management Company Limited
BEBBEEEERDAA

Next Generation Game
Engine Training

Participants interested in cross-platform
game design learned to use the Unreal
Game Developer Kit (UDK) and created their
own next-generation game for the iPhone,
PC, PS3 and Xbox 360 platforms.

R RS BEINE

IIEIEE AR RBERBAN2MEMR
% ith 7722 (£ A UDK T & - }AiPhone * PC
PS3 I Xbox360 E A & BlYE X K 22 -

Angels Den -
Investment Readiness
Bootcamp

This bootcamp prepared
incubatees and introduced them
to special fundraising channels
and events at which they could
meet angel investors to pitch their
products and services.

Angels Den -
Investment Readiness
Bootcamp
IEIEBZBEEARNBEEE
EESMAREE  WHEMAIBRT
ETEm &R ES KR S|IKE
WEERZREE °

Animation Camp 2011

Local animators and industry professionals
gathered to learn from world leaders in 3D
animation, including Lucasfilm Singapore,
Giant Step and Rising Sun Pictures.

ISR INE 2011

MR EFINEERHEF AR - Giant Step A
Rising Sun Pictures % X A AYit RANZ 3D B =
RENBITHRE  MAMBEMRERZS 5

PN
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Words from our graduated incubatee
EEEENFNE

“Cyberport’s Entrepreneurship Centre T - ST COMPANY  + Based in Hong Kong
offers ICT start-ups with incredible support, ., MmN N

* Digital entertainment
publishing and distribution

from professional services and help with
enterprise management and promotion, to
basic financial aid. They definitely live up

to their claims in helping ICT entrepreneurs
develop creatively and turn their companies
into successful commercial enterprises.”

* Gaming on various social
network sites

_AUNLOCK L (R : o
J %"" B - VIARUL B ’a renwen

[BISELERBBEFALDRTBICTES LXEHEH v, UNLOCK
BRRE  DTHRHELRERE EFLUEELRUEF
—RINGIZHE - R BFLENRETRENFEE
BREAIER - s B 17 2 P) 52 IR 25 RK Dh B9 i &€
i o |

Mr Boniface Lee
Emagist Entertainment Limited

THRERE

Emagist Entertainment Limited About Emagist Entertainment Limited B8 Emagist Entertainment Limited
: One of Cyberport’s incubated companies in 2009, Emagist Emagist R 2009 F R A BB AN HE A
grew from start-up to a company over 50 staff in Hong Kong AIERRER - BRRESRREEER
and South East Asia. The company plans to expand its offices FBBS0Z BT - WrrdlHEEERE -
and recruit 200-300 employees to its Hong Kong headquarters REBEE RN A FIEHE200-300 %
and PRC. BT

URL: www.emagist.com AUk - www.emagist.com

Major achievements: SRR
e More than 40 million registered users on Facebook o 7t Facebook & ¥ A #8 184,000 & & &
e The flagship game received more than 1 million downloads ERLEIS]
from iOS and Android platforms and once listed as one of 7588 385 155 9 10S A Android kit 2 1% T
the Top 13 Facebook Games 838 1008 X - I & £7 5l Facebook ix
RECD R R AT 13

5 O Hong Kong Cyberport Management Company Limited Annual Report 2011/2012
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Mission

e Facilitate partnerships and alliances between Hong

Kong's ICT SMEs and global enterprises to achieve mutual

success.
e Provide business support to ICT SMEs in Hong Kong to

enable them to tap into the overseas and mainland China

markets.

¢ Promote the exchange of technology and talent between
Hong Kong and worldwide ICT enterprises to fuel the
growth of the ICT industry in Hong Kong.

e Establish a channel through which overseas and PRC-

headquartered ICT enterprises can easily access Cyberport

in Hong Kong.

The Collaboration Centre was established to develop a

comprehensive reciprocal network for Hong Kong’s ICT start-
ups and SMEs, helping them to explore, establish a presence

in, and capture emerging business opportunities in Hong

Kong, mainland China and overseas markets. By encouraging

business alliances and talent exchanges between the Hong

Kong ICT industry and its overseas and mainland counterparts,

the Centre promotes the long-term development of Hong
Kong as a digital economy.

REPRESENTATIVE OFFICE IN SHANGHAI

In August 2011, Cyberport established a representative office
in Shanghai, offering Hong Kong's ICT SMEs the opportunity
to network and explore business opportunities in the Mainland

with the assistance and expertise of the Centre.

Hong Kong Cyberport Management Company Limited
BEBBEEERROA

£ an

BB A ICT P/ E R BRI ERE Y
B REMESERRE  REHE
RUE -
RABICTHNEEREEEZE - 15
BYERBIEIINR BRI TS o
o DNERANEERH S 4 ICT A 7 BRI AY
R E-DEEIICTERNER -
e BBREVRE HBEEBIKRPEAL
EENEBEIBRILEBEE -

WIERLEKI - EEARBHICTES
tEMFNECERE—EAEE2ENHHE
o RELEQANEHREAMEEINT
% ARBEANEE - RLESBEAS
ICT/TEEBIN N A E R rE B BB
AT R BB EABIS BTSN
ERERE -

LERRE

201148 7 BB LIBRIIRKRE -
LGB BIBHER LB EBERME - B
FENICTHNEREAEE S BEAAF
BEERXRMKE - REFRMTHIZHE

+

Sl
R -
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Corporate Service

The Centre offers full corporate services to companies who are !

interested in establishing a collaborative business relationship
with our overseas and mainland partners. With prior
registration, corporate service subscribers are entitled to enjoy
many benefits, including soft landing and business support

in mainland China, access to the Centre's facilities, business
matching and networking opportunities, and marketing
support, as well as financial subsidies on recruiting interns.

i ERH

RORAE EBREGINRE AR R B
BEBENEE  REEAZHBRRE
FRELEM  CERBAFPENZASE
HED  BRNEEETITABATS
VHEB LESIE - ERBERLR
- EBRHREXBREHEREEN W
SHEXEAESREEBEMNER -

SERVICE SUPPORT PLATFORM FOR BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT

EBRBRYAE

Business Support

Alliance Network

BB R

Hong Kong Cyberport Management Company Limited
EHRYSLERERLT

Business Connect

Showcase

EmRT

PARTNERSHIP

During the review period, the Centre has actively established
strategic partnerships with local and mainland counterparts,
fostering technical exchange and business collaboration within
the region:

Knowledge and Innovation Community in
Shanghai

In April 2011, Cyberport signed a five-year strategic
partnership agreement with Knowledge and Innovation
Community (KIC) in Shanghai. As part of this agreement,
Cyberport was able to establish a representative office in
Shanghai within the KIC campus in August 2011 to help Hong
Kong ICT SMEs explore business opportunities in mainland
China. The partnership also extended an opportunity for
Cyberport’s five corporate service subscribers, including Hong
Kong Bubble Mon International Licensing Ltd, DEF APP Ltd,
Leovation Ltd, Smoothweb Ltd and XNT Ltd, being nominated
to demonstrate their solutions at the Shanghai Cloud
Computing Creative Exhibition Center established by the
Shanghai Yangpu District Government. Cyberport also jointly
hosted various ICT events with KIC, including the Smartphone
Apps Seminar and Cloud Computing - Opportunities for
Entrepreneurs. KIC is also the strategic partner of Cyberport’s
first Hong Kong - Shanghai ICT Internship Programme, with

both organizations working together to foster talent exchange.

China Cloud Tech Limited in Beijing

In June 2011, Cyberport signed a Memorandum of
Understanding with China Cloud Tech Limited. This promise
of collaboration in the development and advancement of
cloud computing technology facilitates technological and
professional exchanges between the two industry giants, as
well as the promotion of ICT education and training within
their respective regions.

BB

FA - PO TER B AN A B A % ([ 88
B RABEERHEE  BULESEAN
AT B S M F

i AIE Rt

20114 B SUSEH FFEIS Rt 2
ELHPAFNRBERHSERZ I
RIS SCFTE] - 2011 4F8 AEAIE
KiwEBAKY EBRKRE - BBES
ICTHR/NEEFABBAREE - thXBH
AE MREZREREBB)BRA
7] » DEF App Ltd ~ FI|RA|ZEEERA
7]~ Smoothweb 2 XNT Ltd % T fi7 1 %
fRIE AP RILSE - WIRBE LIGERE
BB TN EEmEAEAFERR
DERMFIRNERTER - BIAIE Kb
MEHBAAPLIBICT)ES - 0[5
BEFHERAREATIFE | R[EtE
ERMMBERNR]E - I E S
B EBEM BB EE R
RIS EAER - € RBIHIBIES
HEETRHA AT ZRFIEE ©

1t : China Cloud Tech Limited
20116 A+ & 15 /& BiChina Cloud
Tech Limited 2 E A {EE =8 - LA
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Hong Kong Applied Science and Technology . B EEERANEWER Outbound Delegation to Beijing B E

Research Institute in Hong Kong Lo 3 3 The Centre formed a group of ICT professionals to join the L 20115 A BIBAHRAERALTE

In November 2011, Cyberport signed a Memorandum 3 L2011 A S B EE S EBERRH } : Hong Kong delegation to the 15th International Soft China L REBRRE 2ELRETHE15

of Understanding with Hong Kong Applied Science and 1 L EREZBAEBETE  KARBMESER ! 1 Expo in Beijing in May 2011. Together with the Office of the L ETEERESHEES ] - EBFEAR

Technology Research Institute (ASTRI). Through this strategic | £ + #LAANSR AT BT RR - I Government Chief Information Officer and the Hong Kong L REERAERBBERMTERENHREY

partnership, the organizations hope to collaborate on L fEIPVG B MIEIREE L RITERRE Software Industry Association, the Centre led six incubatees LT BEROREARREE ARNAE

research in technical developments and exchanges, and in DR b OETIEE(L o S HE S FE 1 and ICT entrepreneurs to showcase products and solutions L RICTHRERZERE - BRMAESH

standardization in ICT areas such as IPv6, mobility, cloud : L BREWRREEAEE  RYIR D8R : 3 in cloud computing, digital entertainment and infotainment. LB BBRERHERETENERR

computing, and new and emerging technologies. Cyberport | | AZMEHRE - BFREFBMHOR } : During the three-day exhibition, thousands of guests visited L AR ERHIERMRET  BEARR

and ASTRI will share office and conference facilities in Hong D R ERE o the Cyberport and incubatees’ booths, with many expressing L EBATNEERLRS TRTERER

Kong, Shenzhen and Shanghai, and work together to promote | ! further interest in Cyberport’s related services such as LB ERTROATHFR B —F T REE

technological development and collaboration in Hong Kong Lo incubation, creative micro fund, collaboration, upcoming L BABR R - BREERE - AIRME

and China. ! events and activities. The delegation also attended the 15th L E BIFEE KGR SEERE
! Soft China Exhibition International Finance Forum during the L B e RREIVESHBEEE (L 15 D

Collaborations in Guangdong Province L EREWHBEEEB : } period. L BERSHEEe S RmE] -

Through the Centre, Cyberport has collaborated with ICT L EEBETL BEEEBRSMEICTR 1 Lo

organizations in the Mainland to offer Hong Kong's growing | ##ETZERIEEE - B ARBICTIT Outbound Delegation to Canada C NEXRHHE

ICT industry a gateway to pursue cross-border opportunities L EERBREROKS  REBEAEER As token of its commitment to international collaboration, L BEEEREIBIMERR A - R2011468

in major cities. From membership in the Guangdong Cloud L TREK - BB TERABRETHE ! Cyberport led a 25-person ICT delegation to Canada in August | A48 25 AABRMICTREREEG N2

Computing Industry Alliance, to partnership with educational | | EXEBEMNKES @ AR [ BIESEIEHN 2011, to explore collaborative opportunities and promote LR RS AFRE RIEEAEICTE

institutions in Shenzhen through the Hong Kong-Shenzhen L BIES « RATFAIEE] BRIZ f ! Hong Kong's ICT achievements. The tour featured a series of L RREEL e RREIHE T — AR K

Cyberport Creative Micro Fund Young Entrepreneur L EEERRAENEEREM AE 2 networking and technical exchange programmes, including L BITAREE) - BER B R A

Programme, which brings together promising students from L K TR Y S EAR R ICTERE 1 the HK-Canada ICT Seminar and Networking Reception in L MEXICTHAS S REEES - R F

both cities in collaboration, Cyberport has pioneered new LM BB ZBIER IS o Vancouver, the HK-Alberta ICT Seminar in Calgary, and the L BITHERE-VABEICTHAE - UK

routes to drive collaboration between current and future ! Special Interest Group on Computer Graphics (SIGGRAPH) L 2NEREGREEHHMEANERIEE

leaders in the ICT industries of Hong Kong and mainland Lo conference and exhibition. During the tour, a number of | (SIGGRAPH) - KRBT EZHL2BZME

China. : f ! } networking meetings and company visits were arranged to L AR URBMSBBERRES -
Lo ! ‘ facilitate cooperation between Canada and Hong Kong, L EMEREFBERZEMNBER - X
R . resulting in 30 collaborative opportunities. L IIEIET 30EAEHRE - RBERE

ICT Delegations L ICTRRERRED o

During the year under review, Cyberport organized both L FR BEARERREIFIENNE A F R Y ——

inbound and outbound delegations to strengthen Hong L BB TEMEREFE —HEA : 1 3 .

Kong's collaborative network with ICT industry professionals in | ZHEHE#MMEMICTERA TR ERA ! 1 : H_K fliada ICT Seminar & Ne

other regions, and to showcase Hong Kong's leadership inthe | | EA1ERLE  AETEREASEE AR

ICT industry within the Asia-Pacific region. L ICTERMEE

Hong Kong Cyberport Management Company Limited | | Annual Report 2011/2012
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it 5558 \ } Cloud Computing Development in China

b N 1 ‘ Symposium

B 7 R IE AR % BB A 8 SN R O B | ymp .
ICTE 8 A+ 775082 7540 e b ‘ ‘ Organized by Cyberport, KIC, Hong Kong Computer Society, Cloud
e \%;('éi Ts’fﬁ}i é %%L - ﬂ?ljiﬁiﬁ # ! Industry Alliance and Shanghai Cloud Computing Innovation Base,
\:7\5‘\%&:‘: K{;er h /;EA 2§1 1212 A ‘ speakers shared their perspectives on developments and future

a8 2 ° ! hVIN

BET LS ABRERAZED challenges in cloud computing in June 2011.

aB /B Y b2 /. A, !

7S SNEEEERTH [HIEE—2011 1 1 ! =3 : =il S g

W 5 T B T S REE 1 : (EESBAREN T A GE

Eg&mNHw;ﬂ@@Jwgﬁ%zwaf* ‘ ; WIER20116F6 ART MBS - AR XN  BBBKEE  TEE
PREIS L C AR = ‘ ST SR EAFENA N  BE AR A N R E SN RS

3 \$ 200 e N : ) ES GGRA £ : e I T RvITRy NI oah N\ B N/
. =1 A jJ = = | " . i FE /']_"J TumiEE Hﬂt E)‘ngk’:ﬁi)j R &;i;ﬁz}%ﬁilﬁi /LA\\T%\E °

In addition to sending delegation to overseas and to mainland
China for exchanging ideas with resident ICT industry experts,
the Centre also invited and received delegations from various
cities and countries to Hong Kong. For instance, the Centre !
invited delegates from Shanghai, Beijing, Dalian and France to
participate in the Cyberport SIGGRAPH Asia 2011 Networking !
Reception in December 2011. The networking reception drew
1,200 attendees, including SIGGRAPH conference participants,
Cyberport’s incubatees, academia and local industry
professionals, providing an excellent platform for cross-region

gE HBEBEXBEELRIREK  BERK ‘ ;
networking and idea sharing. ! '

WERNFEAL  RABIRIEHRES ‘ |
Fa - REBBEERAE- ‘

During the review period, Cyberport received over 100
delegations, reaching near 1,200 overseas and mainland
participants.

FA - BISBEFEE100EGHE - 2
1,200 R85 R AR 20 o :
Smartphone Apps Seminar in Shanghai }
ICT leaders and entrepreneurs from Hong Kong and Shanghai ‘
gathered at the Smartphone Apps Seminar in Shanghai in October
2011 to share their smartphone apps and products.

g FRERARARE

R FHEAREARE] K201 F10 AELERT  BEREBRL
BOICTERFMRCER  RANTREFREAERRERNT
BRE -

EXEEEE

MAJOR EVENTS AND ACTIVITIES

The 8th China
International SME Fair
At the 8th China International SME 1
Fair in Guangzhou in September 1
2011, Cyberport’s Incubatees and ‘
Smart-Space tenants were present

to promote Cyberport and its
programmes, including the Incubation
Programme and CCMF, as well as to
tout the benefits of the organization’s !
collaborative platform and its Shanghai 1
representative office. :

Cloud Computing - -
Opportunities for
Entrepreneurs in Shanghai
During this seminar in November 2011 ICT
entrepreneurs were given the opportunity
to network and learn from the experience
of renowned cloud experts from Microsoft
Corporation, Asia Cloud Computing
Association and Cisco Systems APAC,
offering over 240 attendees valuable
insights.

[EtE—ERPEBEIRR ]
MIER 2011 F 11 AT BICTHEKXE M
THRET  WAZ/EAREHELEHERA
& BEMEAR DNEHERE RER
R ABIR240 B e E TG S -

FENEFEEEREFR/NEE !
HEE :
2011 F9 AEEIMNBITH[E )\ EHR

SR EFES] o SIEBN ;
1 E A7) K& Smart-Space i P 9k H
REHESIBEBRET [HREBEER
2 R [SIEBAIEMAES] Sat3
R ASIEENRETE R EEREE

EE-
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Words from our Corporate Service Subscriber
TERFEAFHE

“The Collaboration Centre offered us a
platform to explore new business opportunities
outside of Hong Kong. With their support,

we established our office in Shanghai, which

is a stepping stone to reaching potential
markets in mainland China. We also developed
a rewarding network among Shanghai
government officials and partners, thereby
gaining a foothold in that market.”

[BEFROBEFEHEBFHAREFE  BEFIFES &
HEE HEFEBLIMHEGRESH MRS - SHEBEF
DRI RF » IR TH7E LG hs i 558 - it B _EFRy i
FERRBREHFEBIURIFAISFHE ZHESHT
BiiBRER - R7E - LBERBETFIEFEAMEFE
U E—TXEEIFARAMBIREX TS - |

Mr Andrew Pang
Founder and CEO, Leovation Limited

WRERRE
MEBR A BB G R A REIHARITHAER

=

Hong Kong Cyberport Management Company Limited
BEBBEEEARAA

About Leovation Limited (originally Playmotion)
Founded in 2004 as Playmotion, Leovation Limited was
acquired by Leo Paper in 2009, when it received its present
name. The company evolved from a one-man operation

to some 60 staff with offices in Hong Kong, Shanghai and

the UK. Looking ahead, the company, which specializes in
providing augmented reality, holographic 3D and human scale
motion-based interactive experiences, plans to list itself on the
stock exchange in the next few years.

Joined Cyberport’s Incubation Programme in 2007, later
entered the mainland market using the Corporate Services
provided by the Collaboration Centre.

URL: www.leovation.com

Awards received:
e HKDA Global Design Awards 2011 (Category: Apps, New
Media) — Silver Award
e HKDA Global Design Awards 2011 (Category: Beyond the
boundary, New Media) — Excellence Award
e Second runner-up in Realfiction Dreamoc content
competition with Transformer 3D holographic animation
e Cyberport Excellent Company Award 2008
e Hong Kong ICT Awards:
— 2007: Digital Lifestyle — Grand Award; Lifestyle &
Wellbeing — Gold Award
— 2006: Digital Entertainment — Best Digital Media; Best
Start-up Company
e Asia Pacific ICT Award 2006: Best Start-up — Grand Award

FRRBERERAF
MEBEEBERATNE R
Playmotion + f% 37 74 2004 4 + 722009
R R RENR =R SRR E AR
e 3% o FIRF PR AUBE I S B IR (AR) X
fit « Z#BIZ T A ABE SIS RIS
AAHABYN—ARR  BRESK AL
BEE  BEAMEEENEEAR - 8
THEBBEOA @ WITEERREFAN
MR G LT - E—ShERE -

TR A S HEEHR A AN 2007 F& N[ £
WEEERE  BEER2011 £F BiniE
ROREM [CERKE ] EERATS -

Ak www.leovation.com

TEsEE

o EBRFTAIHEIREGRETALE2011 (G
HEEKER - ERRSY) - iR4E

o EHBBRETEN L IRIRERFTALE2011 (37
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Mission

¢ Drive knowledge-based programmes that will transform
Hong Kong into an inclusive knowledge-based digital
economy.

e Invest resources in local talent development.

e Support initiatives that promote ICT adoption.

e Make Cyberport a living example of a digital inclusive
community.

The Knowledge Centre was established to drive knowledge-
based programmes with the goal of helping to transform
Hong Kong into an inclusive knowledge-based digital
economy. The Centre invests in local talent by building up
their ICT knowledge through the organization of world-class
conferences, inspirational training sessions and competitions,
and attracts the interest and participation of young people in
the ICT field. The Centre also supports and sponsors different
initiatives to facilitate ICT adoption in Hong Kong.

KNOWLEDGE SHARING

Keeping abreast of the latest trends in information technology
is vital to the success of ICT-oriented businesses. The

Centre organizes and co-organizes a variety of different
training sessions, workshops, seminars and conferences to
help ICT professionals stay at the forefront of technology’s
evolution. For ICT start-ups, the Centre also provides soft-
skill training and mentoring, ranging from management skills
to sharing sessions with venture capitalists, to better equip
the entrepreneurs at the helm with the necessary skills to fully
develop their businesses.

Hong Kong Cyberport Management Company Limited
ERBIEBEERRAA
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The Cyberport campus has proven to be a gathering point for
ICT professionals from around the world. During the review
period, a total of 24 ICT-related conferences and events were
held at Cyberport, attracting some 9,900 industry professionals
and experts. These conferences and events provided a valuable
opportunity and platform for ICT practitioners to share their
experiences and ideas.

In addition, the Centre has also maintained active partnership
with over 100 industry associations, government bodies,
academic institutions and commercial firms to support a
variety of ICT events and activities held both on and off the
Cyberport campus during the review period. It has thus served
as a strong vehicle to promote the collaboration of industry
practitioners and ICT development in Hong Kong.

Knowledge transfer and training sessions offered by the
Centre provide development updates on current technologies,
and information on the latest hot IT topics such as cloud
computing, the new Internet Protocol Version 6 (IPv6), HTML5,
e-content, green ICT practices, digital audio broadcasting
technology, stereoscopic 3D production and mobile
applications development.

During the review period, the Centre organized and supported
48 knowledge transfer and training sessions, attracting over
5,900 local ICT practitioners and helping the Hong Kong ICT
industry maintain a healthy eco-system with a continuous
supply of bright and brilliant ICT talents.

ICT Knowledge Transfer and Training Sessions Fast Facts

ICTHRER ST ER

HFBEREDIRICTES NERS - F
MEB 24EICTHEN SR EBNEES
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e 24 |CT-related conferences and events were held with some 9,900 industry professionals and experts attracted

HEBIT24EICTHBEEFIEE) - 549,900 ERA LR HE

e 48 knowledge transfer and training sessions were organized and supported with more than 5,900 local ICT

practitioners joined

FHEBITH S #F A8 (E AN B I ARARIZ - 715,900 B ICTHEE 2

Highlighted topics:
BEHAR:

e digital media marketing e Internet Protocol Version 6 (IPv6) and digital audio

ISR T IS HEE broadcasting
B 4938 A 157 5E 55 6 iR (1Pv6) e BRI 28 = B 18

* mobile advertising

MAJOR EVENTS AND ACTIVITIES

= - w-

g st

2011 Digital Marketplace -
“Use of Internet to Hedge
against Inflation” Seminar

This seminar co-organized by the Centre
encouraged market leaders to share views on
emerging trends and current best practices
in adopting cost-effective workplace Internet
platforms to beat inflation and increase
competitiveness.

[2011 HEHE - = A EHEE
nER| IS
EEsmTLARNTIHERES ERRERY
E¥REAWEE  PEIRFTIEBE  UREE
T E B BT A R AR TTE -
W TEFIEEE - B BE A -

EXEEEE

IPv6-Related Seminars
and Trainings

The Centre co-organized a series of
seminars promoting the adoption of
IPv6, with speakers from international
ICT companies sharing their experiences
in implementation. It also supported
the first IPv6 certification and training
in Hong Kong.

IPv6 18 B 5 & B2 3% 3

ROl B A B B A I — R W AT 2 A
EIPV6FER - 2RIk B BB ICT RIEHER
ERXRE LD ZEMIPVEHIEEH o
I EE E EIPve R B EH I HETT K

5ol -

S e patent application ‘ ! N .
RBES iy § 3 e o
° digitgl ggming ¢ technology commercialization : |
S5 5K MExmEEl
e cloud computing
e L
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Cyberport Speaker Series - The Birth
of A New Medium in HK: Digital Audio
Broadcasting (DAB)

Attendees of this seminar gained an overview on the

latest developments, challenges and opportunities in DAB
technology, as well as future market trends in the audio
broadcasting marketplace.

HNBRERI—BIRETRBETANE
Wil @R e B T REFHE RS EERRORE - B
B8 - (TR EAR KBRS REN IS EY -

Hong Kong Cyberport Management Company Limited
BEBBEEEARDOA

2011 Hong Kong Marketing
Smartphone Apps Popularity
Contest

Co-organized by the Centre, this contest
promoted the use of smartphones in
advertising and marketing activities, and
promoted Hong Kong as a leader in creative
advertising and marketing smartphone apps.

0N BERZBRATSER
Smartphone Apps X E
IEBERLEN  EEABLESIHE
BEBERMIGHEGRNER  WHEHES
TERIE ST e FRZXHEE ARG
fif °

Silicon Valley Business School
Seminars

These seminars provided valuable insights into
how the Silicon Valley model of structuring a high-
tech start-up works, and guidance on technology
transfers, patent licensing, sales and acquisitions.

woamERmIE
FHEBTUY AEABREBOB AL AT
RIEE - LRFAEE - BRI BFRLEO L ERN
WIS NEREE RS -

World Internet Developers’
Summit 2012

Renowned speakers from Adobe, Facebook,
Microsoft, Mozilla, Rovio Asia, W3C and Yahoo!
shared with the audience the latest technology
for HTML5 and cross-platform Internet
development.

BIMR B B A BE 5 HE €38 2012

7% & Adobe ~ Facebook * #§ & - Mozilla * Rovio
Asia - WICTIHERZEMECENER - REFE L
DEHTML 5HEE T & BBAREN SRR EE -

ICT StartUP Roundtable
Discussion

The half-day roundtable invited accomplished
industry entrepreneurs to share with the audience
their experiences, challenges and successes in
starting and running a business.

MERIRZEEA
EEAEYLBNBEED  AESERYLER -
AR AR TR 2 B85 TERLE -

Next Generation Information
Technology & Standard Symposium
Industry professionals and regional government
representatives from Hong Kong as well as mainland
China came together to share information and ideas on
developments in cloud computing, related standards and
specifications, and related government policies.

M—REREMREERE
REEBRABNERETNBARE - N LETH
RIS B E SRR - I 5 AR B ARG A R BT B
HERER -
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SCHOOL RELATIONS &
COMMUNITY PROGRAMMES

Seeking out, nurturing and educating Hong Kong's next
generation of ICT talent is crucial to the goal of helping Hong
Kong excel as the leading ICT hub in the Asia-Pacific region.
The Centre’s youth-based programmes tap promising young
people and educate them about innovation, creativity and
technology, inspiring many to stake out a future and a career
in the ICT profession.

Hong Kong-Shanghai ICT Internship
Programme 2011

The Hong Kong-Shanghai ICT Internship Programme, launched
in June 2011, offered university students from Hong Kong the
opportunity to work on ICT-related projects for multinational
corporations in Shanghai. The students witnessed how
information technology affects business strategy, and gained
invaluable experience with technology in an empirical business
setting. This experience lays a strong foundation for later
entrepreneurial efforts in the Hong Kong ICT industry.

T o
)T/ CYBERPORT

ng Kong-Shanghai ICT Internship Programﬁ T
: ]

BREGRELEED

BEIREBR AT AR ICTLB IR
RREE ROV ELRRE BERMEE
ZH—RWICTEBAA - FOHZES
DEFHUEENNTLOFEER - At
PR ERE BEMAIEFERHRE @ 31E
PRk & ICT 2572 H 88 B R R -

BARAEMRBANEEHESS
£12011

L2011 E6 B (BB E A RB
MR HEBSE ] AEBABER
HE LEEEMEEEICTHE TENR
€ - EEBHRD 2EBLERBTEH
RS/ 2R RE - YRS TIER
SR ERRRER #TESEENT
VEIESR - ML A RBEBUILIEES - AES
ICT ¥ RIEBRR R ERIT TBERE -

Under the programme, 22 students were accepted as interns
by six companies including Concept Art House LLC Shanghai
Rep. Office, EMC Computer Systems (FE) Limited, IBM China/
Hong Kong Limited, Leovation Limited, Microsoft Corporation
and Shui On Land Limited. Through this and similar
programmes, the Centre hopes to groom the next generation
of local ICT talent and entrepreneurs. The programme also
strengthens collaborative ties between Hong Kong and
Shanghai.

Other Youth Programmes

The Centre’s efforts to nurture ICT talents extended through
its school outreach programme, which included competitions,
career and professional talks, campus and company visits
designed to spark students’ interests in a career in the

ICT sector. During the review period, nine outreach talks
were arranged, reaching over 1,000 students in different
educational institutions.

Hong Kong Cyberport Management Company Limited
BEBBEEEERDAA

B EN AL S EER
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For the fourth consecutive year, the Centre co-organized the
Hong Kong Youth 3D Animation Competition with partners
to nurture in younger generations an interest in design and
digital technology. Talented primary and secondary students
received free training in the use of 3D animation software and
engaged their newfound experience in creating animations.
Over 700 students participated in the competition of the year
2011.

Reaching Out to Visitors

As part of the promotion of a digital-inclusive society,
Cyberport welcomes visitors from all communities and
countries, including younger generations, senior citizens, ICT
professionals, government officials and overseas delegations.
The Centre has designed programmes to enhance public
understanding of information technology and strengthen ties
between the public and the digital community, driving Hong
Kong forward as a knowledge-based society. The visits also
opened opportunities for idea and knowledge exchange, as
well as the possibility of further collaboration. During the
review period, the Centre arranged over 190 visits, reaching
over 4,800 visitors from different communities, educational
institutions and 23 countries.

ICT ADOPTION INITIATIVE

Over the years, the Centre has actively engaged in and
supported various initiatives to bridge the digital divide in

our society and enable more citizens to enjoy the advantages
offered by technology. We have persuaded a number of
different organizations to join hands with us in assorted digital
inclusion programmes for the community. These efforts
enable young people from poor families, senior citizens,
persons with disabilities, and other needy members of the
community, to access, learn and use ICT and online services,
to better help them integrate into the information society.

The Centre has also engaged business establishments and
partners to provide support to NGOs with computer facilities
and basic technology courses to assist various needy groups
in different parts of Hong Kong. The effort has enhanced
the NGOs' information technology capacity and resources
to sustain ongoing computer-related services and deliver
professional training.
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Words from our intern
EE AL

“l benefited from the hands-on technical
experience, which enabled me to engage
and learn from professional ICT practitioners.
My supervisor at Microsoft was helpful.

He was always there to give me guidance
and mentoring. | would have missed a

great opportunity if | had not joined the
Cyberport internship programme. I will
highly recommend other students to join the
programme this year.”

[BBHRSEBICTIE HERTEANLERD
RAERE » HBESIIEICTRFA LS L BEBRMH

HEETERBTIERF TEEFUEFTERMRIERE

FHELDRE - YRBZFEMHISEN B EE -

—EPEEBFEEHETRNEERE - FTLL - &
EERAMAEREENS FEMEE - |

Mr Helic Leung
Participant of the HK-SH ICT Internship Programme, student of the
Chinese University of Hong Kong

ML o \
S AN RBRARENERHBSNE - BT IARRE

Hong Kong Cyberport Management Company Limited
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About the Hong Kong-Shanghai ICT Internship
Programme

Launched in June 2011, the Hong Kong-Shanghai ICT
Internship Programme offered university students from Hong
Kong the opportunity to gain hands-on experience and
valuable contacts in the industry by working on ICT-related
projects for multinational corporations in Shanghai.

Programme Duration: 6-12 weeks
Eligible Participants: Full-time ICT students from universities in
Hong Kong

Participating companies in 2011:

Concept Art House LLC Shanghai Rep. Office
EMC Computer Systems (FE) Limited

IBM China/ Hong Kong Limited

Leovation Limited

Microsoft Corporation

Shui On Land Limited

BERESEMREMNREHEL ]
[EAEAMRBMEHEOBHEZE] »
201156 AL - AEBMAREBLEREE
e - FBRLEBROCER DFETH
ICTIBER @ 2IEREABFEBICTITERN
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EEH6-128
2MEER A KE2HFICTEFR
B4
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Hong Kong Cyberport Management Company Limited
BREBBEEERRDAA

TECHNOLOGY

CENTRE
B /O

Mission

e Bring cutting-edge industry tools and knowledge to Hong
Kong in order to develop a diversified technology-oriented
local industry with a global outlook and network.

e Provide state-of-the-art hardware and software facilities
to ICT and digital entertainment practitioners.

,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,

The Technology Centre is dedicated to bringing cutting-

edge industry tools and knowledge to Hong Kong in order to
develop a diversified technology-oriented local industry with a
global outlook and network. Since its inception in 2003, the
Technology Centre (formerly the Digital Media Centre) has
supported local businesses through the investment of high-end
production equipment, as well as the production of videos,
films, animations and game content for online platforms.

Due to the rapid pace of development of ICT, the Centre

will further enhance its role in the adoption of state-of-the-
art technology in the streams of digital entertainment, social
media, cloud computing and mobility solutions to better help
ICT start-ups capture growing opportunities in these four
areas.

fEan
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DIGITAL ENTERTAINMENT

Digital Cinema Exchange (DCX)

Launched by the Centre in October 2009 with funding from
the Hong Kong Film Development Council, the Digital Cinema
Exchange Pilot Scheme made use of Cyberport’s robust
network infrastructure and cloud computing solutions to
create a high-speed digital exchange platform. This enabled
the local film industry to transmit large amounts of high-
resolution digital content through a highly secured network
for purposes of broadcast, distribution and production. The
results have been well received by content providers, cinema
operators and audiences.

The Centre has delivered over 30 different forms of
entertainment for the public to enjoy, such as live concerts and
operas, as well as helping film distributors to transmit digital
prints to Hong Kong. Through the DCX platform, the 2011
Wimbledon championship games were transmitted live in 3D
from the United Kingdom to five Hong Kong digital cinemas in
July 2011.

In November 2011, Cyberport continued the DCX service with
its own funding.

4K Live Streaming Technology

While most industry practitioners in the market are still using
2K technology for movie production, Cyberport introduced
4K live streaming technology, offering a next level experience
for those in the local industry. This technology offers four
times the resolution of HDTV, and is capable of delivering a
wide range of content, including 3D content, to large theatre
venues in real time. During the review period, the Centre has
hosted 4K demonstrations within Hong Kong, and between
Hong Kong, the US, and Japan, as well as a workshop
introducing a complete 4K production chain for filmmakers.
Such initiatives were realized through our partnership with the
digital media organization CineGrid in 2010, when Cyberport
became their first member from the Greater China region.

HIR RS
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e 10 cinemas participated in the DCX Pilot Scheme in 2010
2010 - HE10EET 28 [BIEE T A H et E

¢ First 3D FIFA World Cup Games delivered 18 matches to digital cinema in Asia via the DCX platform in 2010
20104 - BUSEEA A [BUSEZRMF 5 | E/T18 S FIFAE REEREIDER @ BAIMNESLA

¢ First live 4K content transmission demonstration to the Tokyo International Film Festival 2010
BERAK BIEE B RE R 2010 3R R BIBR B0 EFHETT

e Over 51 live events via the DCX platform delivered since June 2010
201056 AES « HETS1HRSEE

e 3 live 4K content transmissions delivered since July 2010
H201067 AES - KET3HIKREERE

¢ First 3D Wimbledon Games delivered in Asia via the DCX platform in 2011
DMNERNERRMIERRFZEID EEMN 2011 FIEFETT

Stereoscopic 3D Competition

The Centre has also promoted the adoption of stereoscopic
3D (S3D) imaging technology, which is increasingly popular
among filmmakers. To this end, Cyberport hosted The First
Hong Kong S3D Competition in June 2011 with funding
support from Create Hong Kong. This competition has helped
encourage the production of more local S3D content.

Winners of the Centre’s stereoscopic 3D animation competition
were also nominated to participate in the Autodesk Panorama
2011 Training Camp. They received critiques of their work
from professionals in the digital entertainment industry, and
review sessions to help them advance their skills.

83D RIELLE
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Dedicated S3D Channel on YouTube

The Centre took advantage of YouTube Hong Kong’s
capability of supporting S3D content and created a dedicated
S3D channel to showcase entries made for Hong Kong’s first
S3D competition. The aim was to further drive the adoption
of S3D Internet technology, leverage the S3D content in Hong
Kong and encourage the production of quality content with
either native 3D live action or stereoscopic 3D animation.

The brand channel had reached over 157,000 video views as
of March 2012. The Centre is now actively using the YouTube
3D brand channel for promoting long-term S3D activities

and events like training, workshops and technology transfer
sharing sessions, and will use the channel in the future to
promote the latest S3D technology developments to the
community.

SOCIAL MEDIA

Social media technology is becoming increasingly entwined
with new emerging technologies. As interactivity and quick
access to behavioral information becomes more important in
this highly digitized environment, a revolutionary new era of
social networking promises vast revenue generating potential
for businesses poised to adapt to this new knowledge-based
economy.

The Centre has collaborated with local educational institutes
to prepare young people to take advantage of business
opportunities arising through social media, and to assist them
in staying abreast of new technology and its commercial
applications.

Hong Kong Cyberport Management Company Limited
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HKUST Collaboration Provides a Digital
Media Platform

Cyberport collaborated with the HKUST NIE Social Media
Laboratory in February 2012 to capitalize on the synergy of
emerging social media and interactive technology. The Centre
provided HKUST students with intensive multimedia training
to equip them to create the kinds of interactive content
required in the development of social media technology.
This collaboration corresponds with the Centre’s mission to
promote digital technology, and Cyberport’s larger mission
to attract and nurture the next generation of ICT talent and
encourage the adoption of new technologies within the
commercial sector.
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CLOUD COMPUTING

Cloud computing is another crucial technological focus for
Cyberport. With a comprehensive and integrated solution
delivered by cloud technology, an ICT company can manage
its business more efficiently and effectively even as it grows
in size and complexity. In July 2011, the Centre began
development on the Cyberport Cloud Computing Platform to
offer ICT businesses a simulation environment and up-to-date
information on cloud technology.

As of March 2012, 12 companies have tried the Cyberport
Cloud Computing Platform, including existing incubatees and
alumni, for use on projects ranging from music recognition
software, educational games, interactive video conferencing
portals, equipment optimization, and more.
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MOBILITY SOLUTION

Mobile service development, managed by the Hong Kong
Wireless Technology Industry Association (HKWTIA), is
another key focus. Cyberport promotes the development

of wireless services through its support for the Hong Kong
Wireless Development Centre (HKWDC), a Centre operated by
HKWTIA, located at Cyberport campus.

Wireless Services Value Chain Corporation

In July 2010, HKWTIA and HKWDC together established the
Wireless Services Value Chain Cooperation (WSVCC) platform
in mainland China. The aim of WSVCC is to encourage
collaboration and knowledge sharing in mobile and wireless
technology between Hong Kong and the Mainland. Under
this initiative, the Centre organized a series of 19 events
during the review period, including networking events,
training sessions and panel discussions. Representatives from
global wireless and ICT companies shared their expertise on a
series of industry topics, such as the necessary infrastructure of
a smart city, and roadshows held in May and November 2011
in Guangzhou to strengthen the connections between Hong
Kong and China telecom operators and mobile technology
enterprises.

UBIQUITOUS city

U-city

Hong Kong Cyberport Management Company Limited
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Technical Training

To enhance the technical skills of industry practitioners and
enable them to keep pace with international competition,
concurrent technical training courses were organized. These
included development training courses for iOS 4, i0OS 5 and
Android 3.0 Honeycomb, as well as HTML5 programming. In
2011, over a hundred developers enhanced their skills through
these training courses.

Mobility-related Events and Activities

During the review period, a wide range of conferences,
exhibitions and similar events on mobility solutions were
organized. These included Disaster Communications 2.0,
discussing the use of wireless technology during natural
disasters, and the 2011 Hong Kong Marketing Smartphone
Apps Popularity Contest, promoting smartphone use in
creative advertising and marketing campaigns. Such events
help the organization develop a training scheme to benefit
local 3G talents for a future in application development, and
provide promotional avenues for industry players to generate
business opportunities. These are vital stepping stones toward
HKWDC's goal of increasing Hong Kong's competitive edge in
the Asia-Pacific wireless industry, and Cyberport’s mission of
transforming Hong Kong into an ICT hub for the region.

In addition to these events, HKWDC also conducted about
100 demonstrations during the review period to illustrate the
performance of mobile and wireless applications developed
locally.
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TECHNOLOGY CENTRE ## i

Words from our partner
EEHBIEE

“The Digital Cinema Exchange pilot project
was a huge success, and really illustrated

its power in increasing efficiency and
speeding up cinema digitalisation by
broadcasting Asia’s first live 3D broadcasts
of the FIFA World Cup and the Wimbledon
Championships via network, and making
Hong Kong the first Asian city outside Japan
broadcasting Japanese live concert. This has
helped to create a platform for future live
3D content. We are very grateful for the
Cyberport Technology Centre’s participation
in this initiative, in particular their technical
support. We hope this technology can

be used in cinemas citywide in order to
optimise its full benefits.”

[EB—EHEEE  [BEEXEXREL] JHRE
FERL BiBEBFE  HfETEEMNTXL
HRHEID R GEBIIFIFALL REEHER BHW
HEGEE NoEFERBR2ENETBHFTLIR
CEHEOFREESHINT  BREEEESIDREE
Mg o B D BHBBERR RO EEE
Hi + R 2 5E iy 75 E A9 3Z 1R o # B8 TR # g 6E
BREZEERED  REBBXHHBEES - |

Ms June Wong
Chairman, Hong Kong Theatres Association Ltd

=EIR/AE
ARk EEEER

Hong Kong Cyberport Management Company Limited
BEBBEEERRDAA

About the Digital Cinema Exchange Pilot Scheme

(DCX Scheme)

DCX is a digital entertainment pilot scheme pioneered

by Cyberport’s Technology Centre funded by the Film
Development Fund in 2009. Using Cyberport's robotic network
infrastructure and cloud computing solutions to create a high-
speed digital exchange platform for cinemas, film distributors,
film production and post-production companies, DCX enables
the secure transmission of high-resolution digital content.

Participating Circuits:
Broadway Cyberport
Paris London New York Milano Cinema
Golden Harvest Tsing Yi
MCL Telford Cinema, MCL Metro Cinema
The Grand Cinema
UA Tuen Mun Town Plaza, UA iSQUARE, UA MegaBox
Palace apm

Major achievements:

e First 3D FIFA World Cup broadcast to digital cinema in Asia
via network

e First 3D Wimbledon game broadcast in Asia via network
3 live 4K content transmission
51 live events broadcasted via the Digital Cinema Exchange
platform

BREBEEIBRTE ] AETE
(DCX T &1)

HEFYERES EPMHDCXET &I — A
WIRLREETE - AEHEEREPLE
2009 F M - WHEBEFREES BT -
sHEIF A SIS E R e RS N EimR Y
RE—EsREHGTE  FHR  EFET
o RAREREREERARE —EZ 2R
RETEHaMENEHAR -

SERE

o FUEEREME

o ERMBA L KBS BT

o RARABXREFM

o MCLEBEIR - MCLIEEREPR
The Grand Cinema
UAHFITES + UA ISQUARE »
UA MegaBox

e Palace apm

MEMRR :

o REMEBEANERABBETFFAE RE
RIREIDHIE

o REMEAERABBETRMBBIR
PBIEEIDEKE

o EITIHAKBIBARNIRIAEE
MATBBEZ TS #7555

Annual Report 2011/2012
B -ECE-CFER




5 CENTRES’ HIGHLIGHTS &M E XL

:ﬁﬂ

- Jéﬁrr
< d

1
T el

i iy
e

CAMPUS

DEVELOPMENT
CENTRE

O EBAIEHD

L

2 Mission

fEap

¢ Provide ICT companies with office space, infrastructure

; o BICTATARMEESENPAZE R
; and services designed to meet their businesses’ specialized HBARBRE UnEHPFNEEREE
/ Il|r,’ technological needs. Ko
':,f‘ f; e Develop, manage and maintain the Cyberport campus and s LUEFRMERE ZEMRUFESR
f’ ¢ facilities, with the utmost concern for customer satisfaction BEFEAASAFE R TEREGE
. ? ﬂ f safety, and sustainability. BYIESEEBANRE
g é g Ff  Provide an inspirational and creative environment for o REWBEMNHEFPNFERMUBEME
= Z / 4 Cyberport tenants and visitors. BHNIRE -
= = /
i 2| G A
| 4| Eo /
77777777777777777 N 4| KU g
. e ]
SESS el G Y
E A ; ffi g The Campus Development Centre is responsible for the BEIED LB E S E R R
‘s "\"-\», ﬁ fﬂ A development, management and maintenance of the L R BEBRARE XARMICTA B
~ ﬁ & # f, Cyberport campus’ facilities. Through the Centre, Hong L BEEARVAEMMINEIAR  RHEE
S _ f, --_,.r"'""-’:" g Kong ICT companies and companies seeking to establish L HIRAENEENRIE YR BRAER
N * Fﬁ = é. a presence in Hong Kong can lease office space specially L AREEENBE SRS RBEREEN
,E:'i § iﬁ ?\ .."f" D designed to meet their technological needs. The campus L BEEBNEBE - BB RREH—E
Q " .—'—-\ ;/' ﬁ “W | also includes The Arcade, Cyberport’s avant-garde shopping L BUABKER TERREN A RINKE AR
.-_'ﬁ ﬁ ﬁ j mall, and our on-site hotel Le Méridien Cyberport. We aimto @ | [& @ ZOERMBAEAENTHAEER
I é,-j \.ﬁ foster inspirational workspaces and a self-sufficient creative L BERNEIHERE  BEAIRKHE -
= :F{/H I;*:jlr‘. community in which entrepreneurs and creative executives can |
’ « b : ? IM relax, interact and network.
i It » ! \Q\L'l. L[T] J‘I"
SN '

e

Jﬂbﬁ,kz)

THE CYBERPORT COMMUNITY

HIFEHLE

Unlike the traditional clustered skyscrapers so familiar to

L BEBEREEREXAEMEREEL
the general business community, the low-density, low- 0 BEATR EENREREIERER
rise and aesthetically appealing Cyberport campus was L EBER-BRY EREAEMAFES
specifically designed to foster creativity and innovation. With | | WHREERS - BEASEREEEELEAE
its interconnected state-of-the-art broadband network and L B HEEEEI0B KR RE L
100,000m? Grade A intelligent offices, cutting-edge IT and L BTE S TRHESOHNEMBREBAR
telecommunications facilities, Cyberport has everything a L EXE BEPEBRFAMICTITES
digital company could need to succeed in the competitive ICT | | RIBBEES o
marketplace. P
8 2 Hong Kong Cyberport Management Company Limited

FRUBBEEERAF
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For the year 1 April 2011 - 31 March 2012, the Cyberport IT
community continued to grow at a promising pace. During
the review period, the occupancy rate of Cyberport’s lettable
office space was 86%), compared to 81% at the end of March
2011. There were 113 companies, comprising 75 commercial
organizations, 7 non-profit organizations, 1 government
department and 30 on-site incubatees.

Over the years, Cyberport has attracted many well-known
international companies in the ICT industry. As of March
2012, 52% of Cyberport's 75 office tenants had non-local
origins, with 51% of them establishing their first foothold in
Hong Kong at Cyberport. Of the office tenants, 60% were
SMEs. During the year, Cyberport’s office tenants employed
around 5,000 people.

MR2011F4A1H E2012%63A318 8
FERN BEESLEEERSEE A
HHESFEEENHERBEHA2011F3A
[EHI81% T 86% o ZN4F & 8145 i %
AN3EAGE - BIFE75MEEKE - 77
SEAR TS - — (BB AT EBFI A 30 P BE 35

B A -

ZEPR - BIEBK TS| Z BB AHA
RFERHICTRRER - B Z=2012F3 8 -
BN 7S EmEMRP S JEARM AR
1552% » & H51% = LAEHE B 15 A1
ZEEASHEEICE - BINE60%H
BmEAFAT/NE AFEHBENE
FIEAF A HKIEA T 45,000 A °

Tenants & Occupancy 1 5 & H &

A total of 113 companies
H113{EEP

Overall occupancy rate is 86%

AR 86%

Over 50% are non-local original companies
#8318 50% 10 P R AR A A

60% are SMEs
60% AR /NP

Around 5,000 people employed in the community
HEF#95,000 A

Office Tenant Mix (Country/Region) J§ X EFF 5 (Fﬁﬁ%/iﬁlﬁ)

Iceland /K& 1%
Spain AT 1%
Australia 2 1%
NZ #7785 3%
Japan HA& 1%
Korea #2E1 1%
Belgium Lt FI 2%

Singapore #13# 3%
PRC (excluding HK.) H Bl (T BHEEE)3%

UK 287 %

Hong Kong &% 47%

US EB22%

France J£E 8%

Hong Kong Cyberport Management Company Limited
BEBBEEEERDAA

Smart-Space @ Cyberport

Cyberport launched Smart-Space @ Cyberport to serve as an
easy-access programme enabling companies to rent ready-
built office units with 2-5 desks per room on a monthly basis
at a comprehensive fixed price. It's the perfect launch pad for
new start-ups, a welcoming landing for newcomers bringing
overseas opportunities to the Asian and Chinese markets, and
a flexible environment for existing companies seeking to scale
their business.

Since its launch, Smart-Space @ Cyberport has accommodated
over 40 companies.

Cyberport Tenants Club

Cyberport concerns about the bond-building among tenants
and workforce within the Cyberport campus and thus founded
the Cyberport Tenants Club (CTC) in 2003 to help tenants
become better acquainted. Members help each other and
also organize events of interest to the wider community,
demonstrating the potential of Cyberport as an ICT hub.
These events include networking luncheons at Le Méridien
Cyberport for tenants and incubatees; the CTC Basketball
Championship, which encourages activity, fun and good
sportsmanship; and CyberRun for Rehab, which brought
together teams of runners and walkers to raise money for a
worthy cause.

Smart-Space @ Cyberport Fi 5t 2]
HWm A HE LY EEFE &Smart-
Space @ Cyberport T & - MR LUE
AEEMZ2eMAE HAASBRERETAAR
M—ZRERECIREFEIAE o LN
MAETEEE RS DESNREY
TN AR B B P B sl M TS B
¥ LUEHBERFEBHNARERR 2
AR AR - B EER EXE
2 -

HEHETER - HEBBIOBRFER
7 Smart-Space @ Cyberport °

HISEHFHE
RSB € (CTO) M 2003 MK © §
EABISERFPMEE TIREF ZHER
AT - FEMREEE - WHNREESE
ISR - e g B8 BB T
ERHE i [ BE oy At [ B A SR UERED - A0
FISBNEBE AR RIEEARRIT
e - BYCTCERBRINT HEDL
BMEE B - AR BRRKEERE ST
EHREESEEE | AEEEEER
£ AEmSHRNESELEE -
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THE COMMUNITY-BUILDING FACILITIES

Working in tandem to support the self-sufficiency of the
Cyberport community are The Arcade, Le Méridien Cyberport,
and the campus’ associated conference and exhibition
facilities.

During the review period, Cyberport hosted 72 ICT and
knowledge sharing events large and small within the
Cyberport campus, including the Next Generation Information
Technology and Standard Symposium, Cyberport SIGGRAPH
Asia 2011 Networking Reception and World Developers’
Summit 2012 with over 15,800 participants, showcasing

the appeal of its lush ambiance and ICT services for industry
leaders.

The Arcade

Situated in the heart of Cyberport, The Arcade is a 27,000 m?
retail and entertainment complex. It offers the community a
state-of-the-art cinema, an international mix of fine dining
and restaurants, a variety of lifestyle shops and an on-site
supermarket. It is also equipped with avant-garde multimedia
facilities and open Wi-Fi, which presents great potential for
large-scale conferences and networking events for the ICT
sector.

Cyberport celebrated the holidays in
style with Christmas Funland 2011.
More than 75,000 participants were
all invited to the various games on
display with mascot Rody at the
Funland.

2011 FEGTE - BASHBE RIS M ERR
LNBTS B RS FE 2011 < JFHWS
B7.58 A200 0 I B E Y Rody 2
BRBE FEBANSBERR

Hong Kong Cyberport Management Company Limited
BEBBEEEERDAA

HEERKE

AESUEERA— ALK EROLE -
EEARTRERESES  WEELEE
EREERENEHRERE  WALR
HTRABE -

REE SHBERERALET 720
ANPNEEMICTERNBZIREZE &
B —REERNTRIZERE - 855
TNERBENEDRMEeERES
(SIGGRAPH) Bt 8 B 2 & B B B B 49 ) 3%
Q#%2012% - WEHEBE158BAKXZ
e RESEASRERRERGKED B
RAEFIBHBHMAERE -

BIREHS
BWHARSUREESENP O - A5
BEBE2TEBY A REREHFENE
Fh  EREBRXRNSMARFN  S84LE
AR T ERALARBRTS  ERA
FEENKREBYERT O - 5 R
HITE S R RS R FANGURAREHE - 2
ICTERBTARUEFE MM EBHIER
HoE o

In the fall of 2011, The Arcade presented a series of Weekend  Together with the Hong Kong Internet Society, Cyberport
Markets, bringing the Hong Kong public a unique experience co-hosted the first day conference of the World Internet

modeled on outdoor markets popular in the West.

REBTRGRGHAHEMRERR -

During the year under review, The Arcade successfully
established a theme based on the concept of home lifestyle,
including new shops such as G.0.D., OVO, Okooko, TREE, M
Style, Indigo Living, and Indigo Kids. A number of thematic
events were organized, including the Christmas Funland and
Weekend Market, to bring the Cyberport joyful and leisure
experience to the public. As of March 2012, The Arcade’s
occupancy stood at 92%. Recruitment of new shops which fit
the trade mix will continue.

Le Méridien Cyberport

The hotel Le Méridien Cyberport is a 170-room haven of chic
contemporary design and cutting-edge technology perfectly
blended with upscale amenities. The hotel’s advanced facilities
and urban style offer an ideal venue for any nature of events,
with on-site exhibition spaces, catering and guest facilities
suitable for industry exhibitions, conferences, forums, training
programmes and similar events.

Developers’ Summit 2012, gathered the greatest minds in
FIEBE 201 FUFE - HHABBEREDTSHENEREYE the ICT industry.

(B ERMEMEEER2012) TRXERBE  KARTNBETAE
BEARR B RORE K

BEBASNAFEKRINELR AR
EHEEEE BRI AEHFMW-  ovo-
Okooko * TREE * JM Style ~ Indigo Living
K Indigo Kids S EE®PIN - BRITEH
TREMHES  BEBEEEREFE
BREES - ARG B —HHKE
IRMEEBES - HE2012F 38 BIEES
HE A EF2% - RIMGEES S -
SREZEENEERFES -

G BV YL

SIS B SRR G R A B HO B i) R AT EE
KRmEHY - REERF170E TMETEN
EEMEESREERNE - BERETH
MRESHEEEERFFRE - AR
ERRER 23 P REIIRES
ERATRMERES - Rt —EREER
FFREOERBH I -
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Words from our tenant
HE M

“l enjoyed the atmosphere at Cyberport
campus, where many other creative talents
gathered to make magic happen. It was

an amazing experience to meet real Oscar
winners at Cyberport’s Digital Entertainment
Leadership Forum! The facilities here

also added value to all stages of our

development, especially in post-production.”

[BRIREZHGEEEANTATZRFTEHEIEKTE
IR R o 7 B H F 1E 8415 18 52 27 1) 5 16 -h 58 B Jfy F
REGETEEH BEEHETRESS | Bi5ELN
TEERBSETIELTRRZREREREE  HEF
RERPEFHEETE - |

Mr John Chu, Bss
Founder of Centro Digital Pictures Ltd.

KRR AE » BBS
SEEBBREARARAIRA

Hong Kong Cyberport Management Company Limited
BEBBEEEARDAA

About Centro Digital Pictures

Centro Digital Pictures is widely recognized as a pioneer of
digital film effects and computer animation in Asia. Centro’s
list of award-winning films includes “The Stormriders”,
“Shaolin Soccer” , “Kung Fu Hustle” and “Kill Bill".

With its expertise in producing stunning and entertaining
effects for movies, Centro brought this know-how to the
attraction world with its 5-min 70mm “Whisker’s Wild Ride"”
4D simulation film for Hong Kong's Ocean Park, the UAE
Pavilion film “A Dream Journey” at the 2010 Shanghai Expo
and the “Flight of the Golden Dragon” opening of the Bubble
Show, City of Dreams, Macau.

In 2007 Centro co-produced with the Walt Disney studio what
was to be Disney’s first Chinese language feature film “The
Secret of the Magic Gourd” aimed at the mainland market. It
was awarded the Golden Rooster Award for Best Children’s
Film of the Year.

Centro is also renowned for high-end post-production of
television commercials. As a 21st century digital studio,
Centro’s mission is to allow ideas and techniques to cross-
pollinate and enrich the storytelling process with the aim of
imparting a lasting impression on the audience. As a member
of the world-renowned Deluxe Entertainment Services Group,
Centro is affiliated with some of the most forefront companies
in the world for the creation and delivery of the ultimate
quality in all aspects of film-making.

Tenancy: A Cyberport tenant since 2003, Centro Digital
Pictures expanded its office in 2005.

URL: www.centro.com.hk

Awards received:

e QOver 40 local and international awards, including Hong
Kong Film Awards, Taipei Golden Horse Awards, and
Golden Roosters Awards

AREREERRD A
BREEREEN-NN\LFEEFBEIZ
HE%%If%EMﬂ&*”%%m%
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RIAWNEB ﬁ%%ﬁfﬁ#
FR %u?ﬁéé%k%ﬁmﬁ %ﬂ
MIBIIEE AL - MEHFER - £BKI
P A% — ) 52 B BR 52 AT B9 E 22 M 44 51V AT 3 Y
BEBBEZEEREAR - BB
W BB ERERES R ERFREUE
REAEBHERREERESHIER
ReRiE) - BORUERBERET BS
I - @ ERFRMREUE - ARR
HRE &%ﬁ(a%ﬁa&%a%
B R R m%ﬁfﬁ DR R
WERIEHEDE UEERBERHRE
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CORPORATE

SOCIAL

RESPONSIBILITY

TEHSEMR

Cyberport’'s goal is to become an ICT hub for the Asia-Pacific region.
In keeping with this mission, we also strive to be a responsible
contributor to society. From a personal investment in our local
community and our staff’s well-being, to big picture efforts toward
environmental protection and sustainable development, Cyberport
is committed to taking an active role in promoting positive social

enhancement.

YRENREEEREABEABICTERNELER  MEAMNERREERTATE
BiE > TERREHESEM - REANEREI BREESTHWEANILENRRS

CARE FOR THE ENVIRONMENT

Cyberport has been active in implementing its environmental
sustainability commitment, and throughout the year has taken
part in and organized a range of environmentally friendly
initiatives.

Going Green on Campus

Many features of Cyberport’s structure were designed with
energy efficiency in mind, such as the lighting choices,
intelligent lifts and escalators, and grey water recycling system.
Operational initiatives like keeping the Arcade between 24-
26°C during summer months, and the campus’ assorted waste
recycling programmes, converting food waste into fertilizer,
cooking oil into bio-diesel, and so forth, have also contributed
to the effort. In 2012, the campus will carry out an energy
audit to review current energy consumption and review the
efficacy of these projects.

Hong Kong Cyberport Management Company Limited
BEBBEEEERDAA

HBIRR

FEBERNTFHRREE - HMEBE—
FRE2MEBR—FINRRED - R
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BEERRER
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TRIRARRBHRLS e AR ERTF
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24F 268 2 WEERETED D
B YT &) - A NS B s MR A E LR A
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%o HEERMEEE WA E&E
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Green Roofing Initiatives

Green roofing currently covers 875 m? of Cyberport 3's Core A
and B office buildings. In addition to improving the aesthetics
of the building and its surrounding environment, green roofing
enhances energy conservation and rainwater retention efforts,
particularly during the summer. It is durable, low maintenance,
cost-efficient and highly sustainable.

Renewable Energy

As part of its commitment toward sustainability and using
renewable energy sources in its daily operations, Cyberport
has installed 10 Power Predictors at various locations on

the campus. These specialized gauges collect and measure
environmental data to assess the feasibility of using solar
panels and wind turbines on site to generate energy. Cyberport
is the only site in Hong Kong using 10 Power Predictors in a
single site for a comprehensive energy assessment.

Joined Earth Partner of Friends of the Earth
With the aid of Earth Partner, a corporate environmental
programme designed to educate and raise awareness,
Cyberport worked on reducing its environmental impact and
reinforcing a ‘green’ mindset among management and staff.
Cyberport participated in the Power Smart energy conservation
contest, the Conscientious Recycling Charter, and programmes
to reduce electronic waste and recycle cooking oil.

RXE#ZLTE

e BUISE3EARMKBEMAEKIE
HiZH 875 F A ARERMZIERE ° £1E
FAETEAI AR KIER FRIRE - BAE
EEFREHLER RN ERKNMA -
BREEMA  XBAKERE  HER
Al B R A IR (RAG A ©

B AERER
AYRBUFEERMNRA WEHBE
EREFERBLESER B EEERZ
& b Bh % 5% H - 3B a2 )R B = (& (Power
Predictor) * LAUSEE B2 IRIEHUR W (EH AT
& RmahEREANEA KRG EE RE N
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A5 ae R 2FEIE2E AR A A
2h o

2 nibER 2 & [ Earth Partner |
BE
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Supported the Hong Kong Save the Sharks
Campaign

Cyberport co-organized and hosted an event promoting global
marine conservation, featuring internationally renowned
oceanographers, international and local experts and celebrities,
and 1000 children all pledging to abstain from eating shark
fins. To spread the word and raise awareness, a photography
exhibition entitled “Beauty of the Sharks” was also showcased
in Cyberport and a number of Hong Kong malls in the summer
of 2011.

XERERRED

HIEAERR T 2RSS FRERETD
[REXLRES | WAFEHIRELRNE
o BBRABNEFER At REGINE
R PR AANT,0005/NE > HER
SEEBFREL IR B BN EE - BEHIRE
EERRE REER201MFEFEH
WERZEAMEYS  BITN[EZERE
ABEEMNEFRE  QEBEAREEFRE
HIBEE -

CARE FOR THE COMMUNITY

Community Visits

Cyberport organized over 78 student and community visits
throughout the year, giving more than 3,500 visitors an
insight into the ways in which technology could improve

their daily lives. Guests included students from local schools,
universities and overseas colleges, members of the community,
elderly citizens and members of non-profit organizations and
associations in Hong Kong. To enrich the visiting experiences,
Cyberport also arranged hands-on trainings and talks for the
youngsters and community members.

Community Activities

Our commitment to local communities shone this year through
our participation and support in many community activities
and campaigns, such as the Drug Prevention - Embrace a
Healthy Life Campaign; Digital Solitary Fund City Dash; Charity
Walk for the Aged Happiness; CyberRun for Rehab 2011 and
Walking on Air for Playright 2012.

BRI A

HEEREE

EBE—FH - BIEERITTHEIRT8E
BEERMREB2EHBENEY  ”
3,500 % 4 ¥Rah & Bt 0] F A RHR2E K
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BT - BB AIGHF D
FERtBRKETHERIREBE  EE
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HERKEE
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[EESHEE 2011 &[5 hgerT
2012 LAITEhE BRI | PIBU) RS 4L ¥
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Hong Kong Cyberport Management Company Limited
BEBBEEEERDAA

Awarded as Caring Company

In recognition of our commitment to the community,
Cyberport has been awarded the Hong Kong Caring Company
logo for two consecutive years. Cyberport's commitment is
clearly demonstrated through charitable donations, technical
support and services to the disadvantaged, and charity events,
as well as its concern for the health and well-being of its own
employees.

caringoompan

Awarded by The Hong Kons_ Cguncil of Social Service
B EREEEEH

CARE FOR THE STAFF

At the heart of Cyberport’s approach to staff development

is our focus on maintaining a culture of mutual respect and
open communication. This goes beyond team briefings and
departmental meetings to keep our colleagues informed on
projects and initiatives, and embraces Cyberport’s information-
sharing mission from the ground up.

We value our staff as our most important resource and invest
in on-going training and development in order to help them
to exhibit their full potential. Through internal and external
training courses we help our staff hone their technical skills
and managerial talents, refine their language skills and stay up
to date on compliance training.

We value our employees, and we convey that through
competitive remuneration and benefits packages well-
aligned with the local market. More than that, we value our
employees’ well-being, and strive to ensure a happy, healthy
work-life balance for our staff. As we look to the future, we
will continue to enhance the value of our people by investing
in staff’s development and capabilities enhancement, for their
personal growth and further advancement.
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Words from our beneficiary
SERBNGE

“We are deeply grateful to Cyberport for
supporting CyberRun annually. Over the
past eight years, it has become an incredibly
successful charity event in Hong Kong,

with more than 8,000 people gathering in
Cyberport and helping to raise over

HK$6 million in donations since 2004 for
those in need.”

[ZFI+RBHREESFH RS LHEE]
(THi 1557 » BEFZEEBEE/\FRBESRE S EE
BEFRE BREBANEHHTF - H2004 FEiH
HEZHE FIHERREBS0005EME -
BAFENALERAZFEB600FETHERH - |

Ms Sheila Purves
Director, International and China Programmes
The Hong Kong Society for Rehabilitation

BNzt
EhEEE LR EEA AR

Hong Kong Cyberport Management Company Limited
BEBBEEEARDAA

About CyberRun

CyberRun is a yearly event co-organised by Hong Kong Society
for Rehabilitation (HKSR) and Cyberport Tenants Club to raise
funds for the a HRSR. Since 2004, donations from the event
have helped to support rehabilitation training and consultation
services for people with disabilities and chronic illnesses in
mainland China and Hong Kong. CyberRun also advocates
equal enjoyment and inclusion in sports for people with
disabilities, and promotes sports as a means of social inclusion.

Accomplishments:

e Donations received since 2004: HK$6,844,455
Total number of walkers: 3,483
Total number of runners: 2,572
Total number of participants: over 8,100

Total distance: 12,860km (runners) or 13,932km (walkers) -

roughly one-third the circumference of the Earth

EADERSHIP

TRAINING CAMP 201) N

AR REBDEIRE]
MEREPHELE] SFRBBERS M
WERPHEAMN RBEBE &
B B2004FRREEEHFEE  [RE
BELBBEI BAESNETRRAER
RAEERA AT R EARBERTER
4R K wE AR F o JE B IR Rl Iy SRR AR A
TEXEHOLEE - FUREGR RN
e -

EEMEE

o H2004FRESZFNG6,844,4558 7T
SITHEB 204 : 3,483 A
MWFEE2ME 2,572 A
LB AE : BB 8,100 A
ERCHAETERE 12,860 AE (A IER)
513,932 2 E (F1THE ) - LSRR
BEN=D2—
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CQRPORATE GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE
EREE

SHAREHOLDER
(HKSAR Government)

AR
(BEBRBTHERA)

S

=R

CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE
REPORT

i%ni

Hong Kong Cyberport Management Company Limited (“Cyberport”),
being a private limited company incorporated under the Companies

Entrepreneurship
Review Pane Centre Executive
Committee Committee

;ﬁgﬁ; CRPREL HITEEE

-y
* ~

p)
Ordinance, is one of the three private and wholly-owned companies TP L LT PLEPTEEEE > Ma%ffggem

set up by the Government of the HKSAR under the Financial
Secretary Incorporated to oversee the development, operation and
management of the Cyberport Project.

ERARBEEEARAT (UTER[8EE ) DRB(AAGREDKY - BEBYS
AITHEBRRUMBARRZEERZEREN="FABMAGRATZ— AEER i
BIEATENRR 2ERERE - |
' The Board of Directors (“Board”) governs and leads the
+ Company in a responsible and effective manner. It establishes
. the strategic direction of the Company and monitors its
. performance.

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

o ) i Board Composition
T . Asof 31 March 2012, the Board consisted of thirteen Board

. ' Members (including two Government directors and eleven
OUR COMMITMENT L RIMERE

non-Government directors). All Board Members are appointed
by the shareholders without receiving any honorarium for a
Cyberport is committed to maintaining high standards of HEE B i&ﬁﬁﬁ}ﬂ;% 36 FPAE specific term and can be re-appointed upon expiry of their
corporate governance as we believe that good corporate ! D GERECERESRRHPERTNE
governance provides the foundation for good corporate DB WHREEITARES  Ret g

L terms of office.
performance and is essential to accomplishing our public
missions, meeting the expectations of our stakeholders and
attaining a long-term and sustainable growth. We have
therefore adopted accountability, transparency, fairness
and ethics as the cornerstones of our corporate governance
framework.

:9 8 Hong Kong Cyberport Management Company Limited
EBRHEEEEERAR

FREINRPFBERENEER - Bt
BBE-—BEEFTREENEEETRR
Al WUAMEN - BRBRAE Eﬁ%’&fﬁ
FOTEERETRREEE RARBNE
A e

The Chief Executive Officer is appointed by the Board as a
remunerated full-time employee of the Company. The roles
and responsibilities of the Chairman of the Board and the
Chief Executive Officer are separate enhancing independence
and accountability.

Board Members come from varied but relevant background
with diverse skills and experience. Eleven of them come from
various business fields, including IT, finance, property, legal
and accounting. Biographical details of the Directors are set
out in the section of “Board of Directors” on pages 22 to 31.

Remuneration i External

Auditor
SN ERER

Internal Audit
(outsourced)
N EPEEET
(HNA))

EER

EZRNEERODMER KGN EERE
B BERESARE BAEBEATN
REETTE - ARERERR -

EEZRMNAEK

HE2012F3F310  EERAF 134
KE(BEMEEHNEERI1IZIIEEHE
B) - FMEEERKEHBRRZALIET
T8 FHERETBEZRT -FIEES
BXEHTERME -

HWAETRAHAEZRERME  LAXH
ERAR - EERIFEMTHARZAIE
B AEsBy Mt REE N -

E=ZRKEXRETRMR - Wk =
MR ERANMB &R R 1M1AKE
KETRANEERE  SEEANR £
B BHE ERKERA - REENE
EFBETHHNFRE2L2EINENEFER
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Board Appointment

Board Members are given an induction programme after their
appointment. Board Members are aware of their collective
and individual responsibilities in managing and monitoring the
affairs of the Company. They should act in good faith and in
the best interests of the Company.

Board Members are required on their first appointment and as
and when necessary thereafter to declare any interests that are
or may be relevant and material to the business and operations
of the Company. They are also required to inform the
Company Secretary of any changes in the interests declared

by him/her or any new interests that may arise. A Register of
Directors’ Interests is kept by the Company Secretary and will
be accessible by the Board Members.

Board Functions

The Board is chaired by Mr Paul Chow and provides policy and
strategic guidance to HKCMCL on its business development, as
well as oversight over corporate performance and governance.
During the year, the Board has convened five regular meetings
and one special meeting. Attendance records of individual
member are shown on page 104.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Accounts

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for ensuring
that the preparation of the annual accounts of the Company
is in accordance with statutory requirements and applicable
accounting standards.

BOARD COMMITTEES/PANELS

Under the Board, there are five Committees/Panels, namely
Executive Committee, Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee, Entrepreneurship Centre Committee and
Performance Review Panel. These Committees/Panels are
accountable to the Board for their recommendations and
decisions.

Hong Kong Cyberport Management Company Limited
BEBBEEEERDAA
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Executive Committee

The Executive Committee (“Excom”) is responsible for
monitoring the performance of the Company and ensures
that the Company has been operating in consistence with the
corporate missions, and the budget/annual business plan as
approved by the Board.

The Excom currently has six members and is chaired by Mr
Paul Chow. The Excom has convened six meetings during the
year. Attendance records of individual member are shown on
page 104.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee (“AC") is established to oversee

and review the effectiveness of the Company’s corporate
governance in financial reporting, internal control, risk
management, appointment and performance of the external
auditor and regulatory compliance.

The AC currently has five members and is chaired by Mr
George Hongchoy. The AC has convened three meetings
during the year. Attendance records of individual member are
shown on page 104.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee (“RC") is established to make
recommendations to the Board on organizational structure and
policies on staffing, remuneration, employment, disciplinary
and dismissal, with reference to the Company’s overall goals
and objectives.

The RC currently has five members and is chaired by Mr Lee
Shing-see. The RC has convened two meetings during the
year. Attendance records of individual member are shown on
page 104.

Entrepreneurship Centre Committee (ECC)

The Entrepreneurship Centre Committee (“ECC") is
established to oversee the administration and management of
the programmes implemented by the Entrepreneurship Centre
such as the incubation programme and the Cyberport Creative
Micro Fund.

As of 31 March 2012, the ECC consisted of six members
(including two Board representatives and four Management
representatives) and was chaired by Mr Anthony Au. In

June 2012, Mr Au ceased to be Chairman of the ECC due

to his retirement. The ECC currently has seven members
(including three Board representatives and four Management
representatives) and is chaired by Mr Alfred Wong. The ECC
has convened three meetings during the year. Attendance
records of individual member are shown on page 104.

HITEES
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Performance Review Panel

The Performance Review Panel (“PRP") is established to review
and discuss the performance of CEO, COO and the Company,
with reference to the Board's approved Key Performance
Indicators and objectives.

The PRP currently has five members and is chaired by Mr Paul
Chow. The PRP was set up in December 2011 and no meeting
was held during the year.

MEETING PROCEDURES

The Board, Committees and Panel convene meetings on
a regular basis. Special meetings will be held as and when
necessary.

Management circulates papers prior to the respective
meetings to provide adequate information for members in a
timely manner to facilitate their deliberation of the issues and
decision making.

The respective Board/Committee/Panel Secretaries record
the major points of discussions, recommendations, decisions
and action items arising from the meetings. The outstanding
matters are followed up by the relevant departments and
progress updates are reported at the subsequent Board/
Committee/Panel meetings.

MANAGEMENT AND STAFF

Management and staff, led by the Company’s CEO, are
responsible for managing the Company’s day-to-day
operations and implementing the strategies and directions as
determined by the Board.

Guidance on the ethical behavior of the Company has

been well defined in the Company’s Employee Code of
Conduct and Business Ethics (“the Code”). From time to
time, the Code will be reviewed and fine-tuned covering
prevention of bribery, conflict of interest, acceptance of gifts
and advantages, handling of confidential information and
preservation of secrecy, intellectual property, and outside-
business or employment. ICAC is invited to give briefing on
prevention of bribery and conflict of interest to the employees

REAMNERERES
KERRHT BRNMTEORERE
EERBBNISRAREREE %A
A TR R 2B R B FR M e
Reidif o
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INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK
MANAGEMENT

The Company aims to maintain a high standard of corporate
governance and enhance transparency and accountability.

External Audit
The Company has appointed PricewaterhouseCoopers as the

external auditor to conduct an audit of its financial statements.

The external auditor plays an important role in reviewing the
truth and fairness of the financial statements. The external
auditor meets with Audit Committee to discuss the nature
and scope of the audit prior to commencement of work if
necessary and to report on findings. The external auditor also
reports Internal control recommendations identified as part of
the audit together with management responses, if any.

Internal Audit

The Company has outsourced its internal audit function to an
independent professional advisory firm (Internal Auditor). The
Audit Committee directly oversees the work performed by the
Internal Auditor.

The Internal Auditor plays an important role in monitoring

the Company's internal governance and provides a basis

for the Board to assess the risk management and internal
control system maintained and operated by Management.
Independent reviews of financial, business and functional
operations and activities have been conducted with a focus on
higher risk areas of the Company. The internal audit plan is
reviewed and agreed by the Audit Committee in advance. At
each Audit Committee meeting, the Audit Committee reviews
the results of the internal audit and evaluates the impact of
the findings and the proposed management action plans.

TRANSPARENCY

The Company reports annually to the Information Technology
and Broadcasting Panel of the Legislative Council regarding
the Cyberport Project, including the financial performance.
To enhance transparency, the annual emoluments of the
Company's five highest paid employees are disclosed under
Note 8 to the financial statements on Page 133.

The attendance of Members at the Board and Committees
Meetings is reported on Page 104.
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of the Company on a regularly basis. Staff members are also
reminded of the compliance with the Code from time to time.
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MEETING ATTENDANCE (1 APRIL 2011 TO 31 MARCH 2012) 5
ERHELH(201MF481852012563A310) |
Board Board
(Regular)  (Special) BT b2 %
5] 5] Z = FE= '

Board members & = Bk & / F I n a n c I a I
Mr Paul Chow &S0 #2584 5/5 1/1 6/6 - - - !

Mr Anthony Au [E (&35 55 4 5/5 11 5/6 - 212 3/3 Re pO rt

Mr Rock Chen BR {2 %6 4 11 - - - - - E

(Retired from the Board on 4 June 2011) (/220114 6 A4 HiRE) E ‘ O n te n ts
Mr Chia Kok-onn 3 B % 55 4 0/1 - - - - - :

(Retired from the Board on 4 June 2011) (720114 6 A 4 BiE(E) . E £|:

Mr George Hongchoy T BRI 3 55 4 2/5 1/1 416 33 - - | I\ Vi - E g

Mr Herman Hu #AE AR %6 4 3/5 01 - 33 - - :
Mr Lee Shing-see ZF A fH5E A4 4/5 10 3/6 - 212 -
Mr Peter Liu B2 & 55 4 0/1 S - 01 - - Z
(Retired from the Board on 4 June 2011) (7420114 6 A 4 B3R 1E) E
Miss Winnie J Ng fh 781§ 22 4/5 01 = 2/3 = = E
Mr Douglas So %% &4/ 5t 4= 414 0/1 - 2/2 - -
(Appointed as director on 5 June 2011) (}420114 6 A 5 BEZE(E) !
Miss Elizabeth Tse 3} & 14 %+ 455 " 6/6 - - - E
(including attendance by alternate) (B 4EH BT & % 7 iR ) |
Mr Alfred Wong & B4 55 4 n - - - - -
(Appointed as director on 1 March 2012) (7201243 A1 BEZE) '
Miss Wong Sau-ying 3 75 2 22 4= 2/5 0/1 2/6 - 212 -
Mr Peter Yan £ S 15564 2/4 0/1 = = 212 213 :
(Appointed as director on 5 June 2011) (}420114 6 A5 REZ(E) |
Mr Ying Yiu-hong &2z % 4 3/5 111 - - - -
(including attendance by alternate) (B 45 BT & % 7 i R &) '
Remarks: E
Board - Board of Directors :
Excom Executive Committee !
AC Audit Committee

RC — Remuneration Committee
— Entrepreneurship Centre Committee '

’l 04 Hong Kong Cyberport Management Company Limited
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Report of the Directors

EERAE

The directors submit their report together with the audited
financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2012.
Principal activities

Details of the principal activities of the Company are set out in
note 1 to the financial statements.

Results

The results of the Company for the year are set out in the
statement of comprehensive income on page 111.

The directors do not recommend the payment of a final
dividend.
Property, plant and equipment

Details of the movement in property, plant and equipment of
the Company are set out in note 13 to the financial statements.

Hong Kong Cyberport Management Company Limited
BEBBEEEARDAA
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Report of the Directors

EERARE

Directors

S

The directors during the year and up to the date of this report ~ AFE R = ARE A FEEHESHT ¢

were:

Paul CHOW Man-yiu (Chairman)

JESHR (£ /%)

George HONGCHOY Kwok-lung

T BB

Herman HU Shao-ming
fAz AR

LEE Shing-see

Pt

Elizabeth TSE Man-yee
HEM

WONG Sau-ying
mER

Douglas SO Cheung-tak
FE b

Peter YAN King-shun
ERE

Alfred WONG Kwok-kuen
=B

Rosanna CHOI Yi-tak

>
£x/E
ZIN b e

Gabriel PANG Tsz-kit
2T

Jeny YEUNG Mei-chun
BED

Rock CHEN Chung-nin

BRI

CHIA Kok-onn

HEZ

Peter LIU Yun-kwan
BLCAE

Anthony AU Wai-hung
B 1235

Winnie J NG

h5EE

YING Yiu-hong
Stephen MAK Hung-sung

BEIRFRA
Daniel LAI

FEHE
Cathy CHU Man-ling

KEK
Ophelia TSANG Oi-lin

IilZ

%
Joey LAM Kam-ping

EsF
Mable CHAN

BREE

(appointed on 5th June 2011)

(2011 F6 A5 REERE)

(appointed on 5th June 2011)

(2011 F6 A5 BEERE)

(appointed on 1st March 2012)

(R2012F3 81 BEEFE)

(appointed on 5th June 2012)

(R2012F 6 A5 AEEE)

(appointed on 5th June 2012)

(20126 BSBEERE)

(appointed on 5th June 2012)

(20126 ASBEERT)

(retired on 4th June 2011)

(20116 B4HEMT)

(retired on 4th June 2011)

(7201146 A4 BiEMT)

(retired on 4th June 2011)

(720116 B4HEMT)

(retired on 4th June 2012)

(201246 A4 BEME)

(retired on 4th June 2012)

(7201246 A4 BiRT)

(resigned on 25th July 2012)

(722012467 A 25 BEEE)

(alternate director to Elizabeth TSE Man-yee, resigned on
30th December 2011)

(HEBZBEES - K20114F12 A30 BEET)

(alternate director to Elizabeth TSE Man-yee, appointed on
11th January 2012, and resigned on 25th July 2012; and
appointed as a director on 25th July 2012)

(HEBRZBEES  R2012F1 A1 HERE
R2012F7 25 AT - AHBEZEAES)

(alternate director to YING Yiu-hong, resigned on 19th June 2012)

(EREZBEES  K2012F6 A 19 HEET)

(alternate director to YING Yiu-hong, appointed on
19th June 2012, resigned on 25th July 2012)

(EREZRBIES  P2012F6 A19HERT
7201247 B 25 BEEME)

(alternate director to Daniel Lai, appointed on 25th July 2012)

(FBHEZBIES  N201267 A25BEZRT)

(alternate director to Elizabeth TSE Man-yee, appointed on
25th July 2012)

(HEBZBETESE  R2012F7 A25 HERT)

There being no provision in the Company’s Articles of ZAARIERMBAIVEEHAEETHERTI IR
Association for retirement by rotation, all present directors & @ HULFIEREESHEERE -

continue in office.
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Report of the Directors

EERAE

Directors’ interests in contracts

No contracts of significance in relation to the Company’s
business to which the Company, its fellow subsidiaries or its
immediate holding company was a party and in which a
director of the Company had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any
time during the year.

At no time during the year was the Company, its fellow
subsidiaries or its immediate holding company a party to any
arrangements to enable the directors of the Company to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or
debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

Management contracts

Save for the management agreement of Le Meridien Cyberport,
the facilities management agreement and the system operation
contract, no other contracts concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the
business of the Company were entered into or existed during
the year.

Auditor
The financial statements have been audited by
PricewaterhouseCoopers who retire and, being eligible, offer

themselves for re-appointment.

By order of the Board
Chairman

Hong Kong, 28th September 2012

Hong Kong Cyberport Management Company Limited
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Independent Auditor’s Report

18 M % B ]

i
pwc

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF HONG KONG CYBERPORT
MANAGEMENT COMPANY LIMITED
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the financial statements of Hong Kong
Cyberport Management Company Limited (the “Company”) set
out on pages 111 to 144, which comprise the balance sheet as
at 31st March 2012, and the statement of comprehensive
income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial
Statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of financial
statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, and the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as
the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely
to you, as a body, in accordance with section 141 of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free from material misstatement.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

B R BETRE

Auditor’s Responsibility (continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers
internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of financial
statements that give a true and fair view in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of
the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view
of the state of the Company’s affairs as at 31st March 2012,
and of its loss and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and
have been properly prepared in accordance with the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 28th September 2012

Hong Kong Cyberport Management Company Limited
BEBBEEEARDAA
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Statement of Comprehensive Income

2 H W R

For the year ended 31st March 2012 #ZE2012F3A31AIEFE

Revenue PN 5) 386,350,746 359,198,042
Other income Eablg A 5 28,322,561 38,280,587
414,673,307 397,478,629
Building management expenses MESIEY H 121,889,427 120,961,590
Staff costs 8 T AN 6 86,907,181 74,449,226
Information technology facilities BB R EREE R
maintenance fee 23,014,667 22,314,130
Government rent and rates b AE K 2= i 9 10,779,479 11,082,781
Other operating expenses Hip & EY 10 95,851,643 88,058,576
Operating expenses before RetTEZ EELH
___ depreciation 338,442,397 | 316,866,303
Operating profit before depreciation ZREFHTE 2 & & i A 76,230,910 80,612,326
Depreciation e 13 (210,763,637) (208,654,504)
Income tax expense Frsfisz 11 — —
Loss and total comprehensive loss £REER2EER
for the year Fak ) 12 (134,532,727) (128,042,178)
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Balance Sheet

BERER

As at 31st March 2012 $2201243A31H

ASSETS BE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment MIEE - MR KRG 13 3,447,980,108 3,633,595,866
Deferred rental receivable RIE RS 6,250,265 13,352,423
Held-to-maturity investments BERIHAKRE 14 275,283,521 202,904,631
3,729,513,894 3,849,852,920
Current assets REEE
Inventories, at cost FERKA 533,768 677,916
Trade and other receivables J7E Wi BR X Rz L th fiE UG ZR IR 15 24,763,670 23,066,195
Amounts due from fellow FEUR R R M B A B FIE
subsidiaries 16 1,938,579 1,291,839
Held-to-maturity investments BEZEPEEKE 14 179,713,926 305,208,290
Designated bank balance FEERITAER 17 — 142,948,186
Cash and bank balances He NIRITHETF 18 547,917,578 333,245,948
754,867,521 806,438,374
LIABILITIES afE
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and other payables FEAST BR S0 R H A A 5RIE 19 66,979,642 53,830,058
Rental and other deposits HPEeREMES 57,501,078 54,075,187
Amount due to immediate FER BRI A RIFIE
holding company 16 254,278,206 254,296,050
378,758,926 362,201,295
_Netcurrentassets = ABEEF®E 000 376108595 444,237,079
Total assets less current liabilities @EERAHEE 4,105,622,489 4,294,089,999
EQUITY R
Capital and reserves ARBEERFEA
attributable to the EhEERKHE
Company'’s equity holders
Share capital &% < 20 2 2
Capital reserve N 21 5,261,848,390 5,261,848,390
Accumulated losses Z2:tEE (1,663,988,204) (1,529,455,477)
Total equity RSB 3,597,860,188 3,732,392,915
Non-current liabilities ERBARE
Development maintenance fund LRESES 17 451,000,000 500,000,000
Facilities maintenance fund LB ES 22 50,000,000 50,000,000
Deferred income BN 2 23 6,762,301 11,697,084
507,762,301 561,697,084
4,105,622,489 4,294,089,999
On behalf of the Board EERRE
o EE
Director Director

Hong Kong Cyberport Management Company Limited

BRYEBERARAT

Statement of Changes in Equity

Ean@Ex

For the year ended 31st March 2012 #ZE2012F3A31AIEFE

Share Capital Accumulated
capital reserve losses

[LES EN- 1 RIER

HKS HK$ HK$
BT BT BT

Balance at 1st April 2010 20104 B 1 H&s 2 5,261,848,390 (1,401,413,299) 3,860,435,093
Loss and total comprehensive FREBEREAEBR

loss for the year B — — (128,042,178) (128,042,178)
Balance at 31st March 201138318/

2011/1st April 2011 201141848 2 5,261,848,390 (1,529,455,477) 3,732,392,915
Loss and total comprehensive FREERTHER

loss for the year ek — —  (134,532,727) (134,532,727)

Balance at 31st March 2012

201263 A31 A&

2 5,261,848,390 (1,663,988,204)

3,597,860,188
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Statement of Cash Flows

BeRER

For the year ended 31st March 2012 # %2012 3 A31HILFE

Cash flows from operating REEBEHERE
activities
Net cash generated from operations #&&¥EBEMELEZIBE®FE 24 73,944,113 47,971,174
Cash flows from investing RETHZHRERE
activities
Purchase of property, plant and AW - e R E
equipment (25,147,879) (13,426,154)
Proceeds from disposal of property, &% « #R &5
plant and equipment FS k18 — 113,590
Purchase of held-to-maturity BABEEIHAKE
investments (258,287,562) (122,034,573)
Redemption of held-to-maturity ERHAEERHERE
investments 304,000,000 23,000,000
Decrease in designated bank balance 57 #1745 6405 142,948,186 84,200,428
Increase in bank deposits longer BB =& A 2 H A
than three months EHFRZE (282,092,022)  (21,139,623)
Interest income from held-to- BB ERHR
maturity investments received RE B 15,341,087 14,501,970
Interest income on designated BUIETERITAER
bank balance received lB=A 1,216,243 332,676
Interest income on bank deposits BUERITE A B
received 1,243,320 459,521
Net cash used in investing activities & /ZEN 2 IR & H F 58 (100,778,627)  (33,992,165)
Cash flows from financing MEEH2EHERE
activities
Decrease in amount due to FENEEERARFIA L
immediate holding company VRS (17,844) (7,518)
Government grants and sponsorship B Ytk fF# B & &
received, net &BhFRE 23 8,431,966 9,571,195
Payment on settlement of REBREEES ZNR
development maintenance fund 17 (49,000,000) —
Net cash (used in)/generated from TESzEeORE),/
financing activities mAHEE (40,585,878) 9,563,677
Net (decrease)/increase in cash BHEREESEEER
and cash equivalents CRmY) HEhnEEE (67,420,392) 23,542,686
Cash and cash equivalents atthe FHZHERELEEIEEH
beginning of the year 214,298,990 190,756,304
Cash and cash equivalents at FHRzBEERRAESEEERB
the end of the year 18 146,878,598 214,298,990

Hong Kong Cyberport Management Company Limited
BEBBEEEARDAA

General information

The principal activity of Hong Kong Cyberport
Management Company Limited (the “Company”) is to
support and promote innovation and technology
development in Hong Kong through the creation of a
strategic cluster of information and communications
technology (ICT) based companies as well as encouraging
the building of a critical mass of professional talent in the
territory. With a vision to establish itself as a leading ICT
hub in the Asia-Pacific region, Cyberport is committed to
facilitating the local economy by nurturing ICT industry
start-ups and entrepreneurs, driving collaboration to pool
resources and create business opportunities, and
accelerating ICT adoption through strategic initiatives and
partnerships.

In order to fulfill the vision, the Company established five
centres namely “Technology Centre” (formerly known as
“Digital Media Centre (“DMC")"), “Entrepreneurship
Centre” (formerly known as “Incubation-cum-training
Centre (“IncuTrain”)”), “Collaboration Centre”,
“Knowledge Centre” and “Campus Development
Centre” (the five centres collaterally named “Operating
Centres”).

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated
in Hong Kong. The address of its registered office is Units
1102-1104, Level 11, Cyberport 2, 100 Cyberport Road,
Hong Kong.

The Company is wholly owned by the Government of the
Hong Kong Special Administrative Region (“HKSAR") via
Financial Secretary Incorporated.

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, unless otherwise stated. These financial
statements have been approved for issue by the board of
directors on 28th September 2012.

Notes to the Financial Statements
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Br ISR MY EE

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies

The significant accounting policies applied in the
preparation of the financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the
years presented, unless otherwise stated.

(a) Basis of preparation
The financial statements of the Company have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”). The financial
statements have been prepared under the historical
cost convention.

The preparation of financial statements in
conformity with HKFRS requires the use of certain
critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgement in the
process of applying the Company’s accounting
policies. The areas involving a higher degree of
judgement or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the
financial statements are disclosed in note 4.

(b) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs

() New and revised standards and
amendments effective for the year ended
31st March 2012
During the year, the Company has adopted
the new and revised standards and
amendments of HKFRSs which are effective
for the year ended 31st March 2012 and are
relevant to its operations. The Company has
assessed the impact of the adoption of these
new and revised standards and amendments
and considered that there has been no
significant impact on the Company’s results
and financial position nor any substantial
changes in the Company’s accounting
policies.

Hong Kong Cyberport Management Company Limited
BEBBEEEARDAA

2

Br RS R R MY EE

FTEETBRBE 2

Summary of significant accounting

policies (Continued)

REAFBEHRRFRANTIES AR

BRTX - BRAHAN - HFRKRE
RIF2WHFFEFERNERERM - (i)

(a) wWBEXE
KRR IDIBIBER BT IERE
AE |3 JF 52 X AN A R B o

RETEBBYBREEARE
MM BHRARERE TRRENE
FHEE - N EEEEERAR
N A G EF R B IR AE L H
- P RRENHE NG EEM

VERERS - b RH B S HE
BEABRZAGEEHRBRHTE
R -

(b) RMHFE]RIETEBUE

HEER|
(i) #HZE2012%F3H318 It F
EEMZH I REETHNE

Al
AARAFEEERMAES
201253 A31 8 IEFE &£
RN B 2 1 ZE TS AR A RO RT
KIS 7] & 78 B 75 o 45 2%
Bl o ZRRQ BB SIS
H S CHE b e
RIS &7 T 51 - RA
KA B 4 A B A5 AR R A
BEAFE  NARHARATA
SRR ELAEANERE

@Jo

(b) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs
(Continued)

Standards, interpretations, amendments
and improvements to existing standards
that are not yet effective for the year
ended 31st March 2012

The HKICPA has issued the following new or
revised HKFRSs standards, interpretations,
amendments or improvements to existing
standards which are not yet effective for the
year ended 31st March 2012 and have not
been early adopted by the Company:

Notes to the Financial Statements

2 FESHBEERHEBE®R)

(b) BRMFET RRIET BB

|
(i)

HER (®)

R == A

H Z£2012%F3 8318 It £
EMRERZEH - RE -
ZRMERT R ZE R 2 g

BB CITMASEB/MAT
A S EHERT BB I 15 3R
AR BB BEITHK
# B E#H E201293A8
31BIEFEHARER - Bt
A B AR ATERAN

Effective for

accounting
periods
beginning on
New or revised standards, interpretations and amendments or after
RTHBEHH
ZEBIEH
FATRBETER - RBRET FEENR
HKFRS 7 Amendment Financial Instruments: 1st July 2011
Disclosures — Transfer of Financial Assets
BEMBREENETR 2RI BE —EZemBEEBR] 201M¥7A1H
HKAS 12 Amendment Deferred Tax: Recovery of Underlying Assets ~ 1st January 2012
BR R EAF 125 EEBUR - WEAEEE BT 20121 A1H
HKAS 1 Amendment Presentation of Financial Statements 1st July 2012
BB ERNE 15 IR 2NN 2 EFT 2012%7A1H
HKAS 19 Amendment Employee Benefits 1st January 2013
BE QR EAF 195 BERA 2 EFT 20131 H1H
HKFRS 7 Amendments Financial Instruments: 1st January 2013
Disclosures — Offsetting financial assets and
financial liabilities
EAMBHEENETHR RIA: RE - cREEESRAGCHEEZE] 20131718
HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement 1st January 2013
EAMBMELENE 135 AFEAE 20131 H1H
HKAS 32 Amendments Financial Instruments: Presentation: 1st January 2014
Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities
BEGTERIF 325 TRIA IR eREERTRABCEE B 201451 A1H
HKFRS 7 Amendments Financial Instruments: Disclosures 1st January 2015
BANBRELET7H ERIE : REZEE] 20151 A1H
HKFRS 9 Transition Disclosures and Financial Instruments 1st January 2015
BERMBHEENFER SRIA: RENBELH 20151 A 1H

The Company is in the process of making an
assessment of the impact of these new
standards, interpretations, amendments and
improvements to standards and is not yet in a
position to state whether they would have a
significant impact on the Company’s results
and financial position.

AR LA EHET &
RIEFTE MRS LR
2 - BB RER 2K
EZFE BB REHA
S F R REERTER -~ 2
B ERMERT R Rz B
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Br ISR MY EE

2

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

(9)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at
historical cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses. Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Company and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. All other repairs and
maintenance are expensed in the statement of
comprehensive income during the financial period
in which they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is
calculated using the straight-line method to allocate
their cost to their residual values over their
estimated useful lives. The principal annual rates in
use are as follows:

Buildings

BF

Building services and support facilities
BFRGEIRRE
Information technology facilities
BB R b

Operating Centres equipment
B ORI

Leasehold improvements
HEVHRIE

Furniture and equipment
RIS %

Motor vehicles

EH#

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each
balance sheet date.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s
carrying amount is greater than its estimated
recoverable amount (note 2(e)).

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant
asset, and is recognised in the statement of
comprehensive income.

Hong Kong Cyberport Management Company Limited
BEBBEEEARDAA

2
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Over the period
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REHFH
10%
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Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

(d) Held-to-maturity investments

(e)

Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable payments
and fixed maturities that the Company’s
management has the positive intention and ability
to hold to maturity. They are included in non-
current assets, except for those with maturities less
than 12 months from the balance sheet date, which
are classified as current assets.

Held-to-maturity investments are stated in the
balance sheet at cost plus/less any discount/
premium amortised to date. The discount or
premium is amortised over the period to maturity
and included as interest income/expense in the
statement of comprehensive income. Provision is
made when there is a diminution in value other
than temporary.

The carrying amounts of individual held-to-maturity
investments or holdings of the same investments
are reviewed at the balance sheet date in order to
assess the credit risk and whether the carrying
amounts are expected to be recovered. Provisions
are made when carrying amounts are not expected
to be recovered and are recognised in the statement
of comprehensive income as expense immediately.

Impairment of assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not
subject to depreciation/amortisation and are tested
annually for impairment. Assets are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is
recognised for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s
fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For the
purposes of assessing impairment, assets are
grouped at the lowest levels for which there are
separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating
units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill that
suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible
reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.

2
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Br ISR MY EE

2

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

(f)

(9)

(h)

Government grant or sponsorship

A government grant or sponsorship is recognised at
fair value when there is reasonable assurance that
the Company will comply with the conditions
attaching with it and that the grant will be received.

Government grants and sponsorships relating to
income are deferred and recognised in the
statement of comprehensive income over the period
necessary to match them with the costs they are
intended to compensate.

Government grants and sponsorships relating to the
purchase of property, plant and equipment are
credited to the statement of comprehensive income
on a straight-line basis over the expected lives of
the related assets.

Inventories

Inventories, comprising food, beverage and
operating supplies, are stated at the lower of cost
and net realisable value. Costs are calculated using
the weighted average costing method. Net
realisable value is determined on the basis of
anticipated sales proceeds less estimated selling
expenses.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivable are recognised initially at
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less
provision for impairment. A provision for
impairment of trade and other receivables is
established when there is objective evidence that
the Company will not be able to collect all amounts
due according to the original terms of receivables.
The amount of the provision is the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows,
discounted at the effective interest rate. The
amount of the provision is recognised in the
statement of comprehensive income.

Hong Kong Cyberport Management Company Limited
BEBBEEEARDAA

2
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Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

0]

()

(k)

)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand,
deposits held at call with banks, investments with a
maturity of three months or less from the date of
investment.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised
cost using effective interest method.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result
of past events; it is probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation;
and the amount has been reliably estimated.
Provisions are not recognised for future operating
losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations,
the likelihood that an outflow will be required in
settlement is determined by considering the class of
obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised
even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to
any one item included in the same class of
obligations may be small.

Employee benefits

(i) Employee leave entitlements
Employee entitlements to annual leave and
long service leave are recognised when they
accrue to employees. A provision is made for
the estimated liability for annual leave and
long service leave as a result of services
rendered by employees up to the balance
sheet date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and
maternity leave are not recognised until the
time of leave.
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2

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

() Employee benefits (Continued)

(ii) Retirement scheme obligations

The Company operates a defined contribution
retirement scheme, the Mandatory Provident
Fund, and pays contributions to a publicly
administered retirement benefit plan on a
mandatory basis. The Company has no further
payment obligations once the contributions
have been paid. The contributions are
recognised as employee benefit expense
when they are due and are reduced by
contributions forfeited by those employees
who leave the scheme prior to vesting fully in
the contributions. Prepaid contributions are
recognised as an asset to the extent that a
cash refund or a reduction in the future
payments is available.

(iii) Bonus entitlements
The expected cost of bonus payments are
recognised as a liability when the Company
has a present legal or constructive obligation
as a result of services rendered by employees
and a reliable estimate of the obligation can
be made.

Liabilities for bonus plans are expected to be
settled within 12 months and are measured at
the amounts expected to be paid when they
are settled.

(m) Current and deferred income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the
basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date in the country
where the Company operates and generates taxable
income. Management periodically evaluates
positions taken in the tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulation is
subject to interpretation and establishes provisions
where appropriate on the basis of amounts
expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts in the financial statements.

Hong Kong Cyberport Management Company Limited
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Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

(m) Current and deferred income tax

(n)

(Continued)

Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the balance sheet date and are expected to apply
when the related deferred income tax asset is
realised or the deferred income tax liability is
settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profit
will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilised.

Revenue and other income recognition
Revenue and other income comprise the fair value
of the consideration received or receivable for the
sale of services in the ordinary course of the
Company's activities. Revenue and other income
are recognised as follows:

(i) Rental income is recognised on a straight-line
basis over the terms of the lease.

(i)  Management fee income is recognised when
the services are rendered.

(iii)  Income from hotel operation is recognised
upon provision of services.

(iv) Car park fee and information technology
facilities income are recognised when the
services are rendered and the facilities are
utilised.

(v) Income from leasing of centre facilities is
recognised when the facilities are utilised.

(vi)  Other incidental income and services income
are recognised when the Company is entitled
to the income and the services are rendered.

(vii) Interest income is recognised on a time
proportion basis, using the effective interest
method.
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2

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

(o)

(p)

(a)

Operating lease

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and
rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are
classified as operating leases. Payments made under
operating leases, net of any incentives received
from the lessor, are charged to the statement of
comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over
the period of the lease.

Foreign currency translation

(i) Functional and presentation currency
Items included in the financial statements of
the Company are measured using the
currency of the primary economic
environment in which the Company operates
(the “functional currency”). The financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollar, which is the Company’s functional and
presentation currency.

(ii) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency using the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation at year-
end exchange rates of monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are recognised in the statement of
comprehensive income.

Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that
arises from past events and whose existence will
only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events
not wholly within the control of the Company. It
can also be a present obligation arising from past
events that is not recognised because it is not
probable that outflow of economic resources will
be required or the amount of obligation cannot be
measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is
disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.
When a change in the probability of an outflow
occurs so that outflow is probable, they will then be
recognised as a provision.
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BEBBEEEARDAA

2

FESHBEERBE®)

(o)

(p)

(a)

BEEENABY BRI GaEH D
HARBNHAOBKEHE - 1R
B HE BT R SREEER B
A ME ) (] 2B 1% - B iRTE
EREZERIRTFUREREX
B

SN

() WEREIEH
AR BHRERFAEIAR - 1590
ARALEHN T EEBRE
FRERAM B ([Thae e )
A AMBHRREZINER
25 mAEEERRFNI
BERZENEE -

(i) RZRERR
SINERX SR P E HEER
BERNEER - FAZEFER
FEERBFREZTREIA
SINMEHEMNEREERAE
FIEAMINERS  HNE
[ et 2k R RERR

FREE
FARBERERBEEMHMA S
BRZEME WEEEFRFAR
—RASFEIEELEMHELH
ETREHER MBBEMHEE %
W IR ENA R BEF B
ZA e RRABETAIAREBE
EHEIBZABERME BERT
REROREAREERAL
FEECEAREASEHNEEMAK
BHERBARR

KARERTHE - ERNHTB
BRI B R o BB R
2 AR TS B R A
- AR AR -

Notes to the Financial Statements

Br RS R R MY EE

3

Financial risk management

(a) Financial risk factors

The Company’s activities expose it to a variety of
financial risks: interest rate risk, credit risk and
liquidity risk. The Company’s overall risk
management programme focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to
minimise potential adverse effects of these risks on
the Company’s financial performance.

Risk management is carried out by the Company'’s
management under policies approved by the Board.
The Company’s management identifies, evaluates
and manages significant financial risks in the
Company’s business units. The Board provides
guidance for overall risk management.

(i) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in
market interest rates will impact the earnings
of the Company. The Company’s major
interest-bearing assets comprise bank deposits
and held-to-maturity investments (collectively
“interest bearing assets”) and are primarily
issued at fixed rates which therefore do not
expose the Company to cash flow interest
rate risk.

The Company has no significant borrowings
other than the non interest-bearing advance
from its immediate holding company.

(ii) Credit risk

Credit risk arises from the potential failure of
the Company’s counterparties to meet their
obligations under financial contracts. The
Company is exposed to credit risk on cash
and bank balances, designated bank balance,
held-to-maturity investments, as well as trade
and other receivables and amounts due from
fellow subsidiaries.

The Company’s bank deposits are deposited
with banks of high credit quality in Hong
Kong.
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3 Financial risk management (Continued) 3 BX¥ERERE®) 3 Financial risk management (Continued) 3 BEREE®)
(a) Financial risk factors (Continued) (a) BiEEEEZEZ) (a) Financial risk factors (Continued) (a) BEEREZEE)
(i) Credit risk (Continued) (i) EEREE) (iii) Liquidity risk (i) FBELEB

126

For held-to-maturity investments, the
Company adopts a prudent policy to invest in
securities only with very strong investment-
grade credit ratings and limit exposure to any
single investment. The exposures to these
credit risks are monitored on an ongoing
basis.

For rent receivable from tenants, credit checks
are part of the normal leasing process and
stringent monitoring procedures are in place
to deal with overdue debts. In addition, the
Company reviews the recoverable amount of
each individual outstanding at each balance
sheet date to ensure that adequate provision
for impairment losses is made for
irrecoverable amounts. The Company
normally receives rents in advance from
tenants on a monthly basis and also has
policies in place to obtain rental deposits or
bank guarantees from tenants prior to
commencement of leases.

For other trade receivables and amounts due
from fellow subsidiaries, a credit policy is in
place and the exposure to these credit risks
are monitored on an ongoing basis. Credit
evaluations are performed on all customers
requiring credit over a certain amount. These
receivables are due ranging from 30 to 60
days from the date of billing. Debtors with
balances that are more than 60 days overdue
are generally required to settle all outstanding
balances before any further credit is granted.
Normally, the Company does not obtain
collateral from customers and the utilisation
of credit limits is regularly monitored.

The Company has no significant
concentrations of credit risk.

Hong Kong Cyberport Management Company Limited
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Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company is
unable to meet its current obligations when
they fall due. Prudent liquidity risk
management includes maintaining sufficient
cash and the availability of funding through
operating cash flows and advance from
immediate holding company.

The Company's policy is to regularly monitor
its current and expected liquidity requirements
to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves
of cash to meet its liquidity requirements in
the short and longer term.

The table below analyses the Company’s
financial liabilities into relevant maturity
groupings based on the remaining period at
the balance sheet to the contractual maturity
date. The amounts disclosed in the table are
the contractual undiscounted cash flows.
Balances due within 12 months equal their
carrying balances, as the impact of
discounting is not significant.

Less than
1 year

—FHT

HK$
BT

MBE T RRIEANREAREE
EREIGBNEREHZR
- BENRBESARE
BEERERLERTREM
HEERABNBRERT
HWRERAHBAES

ARRZBREEHERE
IR RBESER
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VRETK It E121&
A AEHAR & R IEE R R
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Between 1 More than
EN PAYET 2 years
—EWF [k
HK$ HK$

BT BT

At 31st March 2012 201243 H31H
Trade and other payables FERERT R
H ot TR 66,979,642 — —
Rental and other deposits HEEZEe R
Hipiz & 30,234,240 11,798,501 15,468,337
Amount due to immediate [EREHERAR
holding company FA 254,278,206 — —
At 31st March 2011 201MF3H31H
Trade and other payables S BE R K%
Hft JERTFOR 53,830,058 — —
Rental and other deposits HEEZEe R
Hipigg 14,064,522 20,662,879 19,347,786
Amount due to immediate AR NG
holding company ZIE 254,296,050 — —
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3 Financial risk management (Continued)

(b) Capital risk management

The Company’s objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard the Company’s ability to continue
as a going concern in order to provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders
and to maintain an optimal capital structure to
reduce the cost of capital. The Company’s strategy
remains unchanged for the year ended 31st March
2012.

Management reviews the capital structure
periodically and manages its overall capital structure
if necessary. As at 31st March 2012 and 2011, the
Company was in net cash position.

The carrying value less impairment provision of
trade and other receivables and payables, balances
with group companies are a reasonable
approximation of their fair values. The fair value of
financial liabilities for disclosure purposes is
estimated by discounting the future contractual
cash flows at the current market interest rate that is
available to the Company for similar financial
instruments.

4 Critical accounting estimates and
judgements

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and
are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Company makes estimates and assumptions
concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimates
will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results.
The estimates and assumptions that have a significant
effect on the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities are
discussed below:

(a) Impairment of the non-financial assets
The Company performs review for impairment of
non-financial assets whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of
the assets may not be recoverable.

Hong Kong Cyberport Management Company Limited
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4 Critical accounting estimates and
judgements (Continued)

(a)

(b)

(9]

Impairment of the non-financial assets
(Continued)

The Company reviews certain indicators of potential
impairment such as reported sale and purchase
prices, market demand and general market
conditions. The Company considers the Cyberport
Portion (comprising Cyberport 1, Cyberport 2,
Cyberport 3, Cyberport 4, the Arcade and the Hotel
but excluding Information Technology facilities) as a
portfolio of asset and identifies the cash-generating
unit to which the portfolio of asset belongs
referring to the valuation performed by external
valuers.

Based on the Company’s best estimates, no
provision for impairment loss on the non-financial
assets including the Cyberport Portion is necessary.

Held-to-maturity investments

The Company follows the guidance of HKAS 39 on
classifying non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments and fixed maturity as
held-to-maturity. This classification requires
significant judgement. In making this judgement,
the Company evaluates its intention and ability to
hold such investments to maturity. If the Company
fails to keep these investments to maturity other
than for the specific circumstances — for example,
selling an insignificant amount close to maturity —
it will be required to reclassify the entire class as
available-for-sale. The investments would, therefore,
be measured at fair value not at amortised cost.

Impairment of trade and other
receivables

Management determines the provision for
impairment of trade and other receivables based on
the credit history or the financial position of its
customers and the current market condition.
Management will assess the adequacy of provision
for impairment of trade and other receivables at
each balance sheet date and significant level of
judgement is required in determining the adequacy
of such provision.
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4 Critical accounting estimates and
judgements (Continued)

(d)

Income taxes

The Company is subject to income taxes in Hong
Kong. Significant judgement is required in
determining the provision for income taxes. There
are many transactions and calculations for which
the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during
the ordinary course of business.

The Company recognises liabilities for anticipated
tax issues based on estimates of whether additional
taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome of
these matters is different from the amounts that
were initially recorded, such differences will impact
the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the
year in which such determination is made.

Recognition of deferred tax asset, which principally
relates to tax losses of the Company, depends on
the management’s expectation of future taxable
profit that will be available against which the tax
losses can be utilised. The outcome of their actual
utilisation may be different.

Hong Kong Cyberport Management Company Limited
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5 Revenue and other income

Revenue and other income recognised during the year are
as follows:

5 WAREEMEA

FRBAEE MR ATERIAT

Revenue ek
Rental income WA 156,642,796 155,484,271
Building management income PESIBUA
Management fee income EEEIWA 75,214,861 71,759,487
Car park fee income f=EIZBA 7,770,475 6,688,058
Other facilities income H A ER A 17,275,603 15,596,423
100,260,939 94,043,968
Income from hotel operation ML N 120,429,597 100,715,161
Information technology A MBHE R WA
facilities income 3,709,063 3,242,756
Fees for usage of Technology B AL E &
Centre equipment and services AR WA 3,272,332 4,395,457
Other incidental income E bR A 2,036,019 1,316,429
386,350,746 359,198,042
Other income HAth g A
Realisation of deferred income EIEW 5 IR
(note 23) (PfF5E23) 13,366,749 15,751,331
Hotel’s Gross Operating Profit BJE 2 8 E TS ERFRR
performance guarantee income REE Y AE AU A
(note i) (Pt5ED) — 8,000,000
Services income from fellow EEINIENGE 7N
subsidiaries (note ii) (BEEE ) 4,201,654 4,201,654
Interest income from held-to-maturity FEEZRIHEKREEE
investments, net of amortisation FMEUWA - = E
of premium of HK$6,199,974 #54)$18.6,199,974 570
(2011: HK$5,743,948) (2011 4F :
5,743,948 % 7T) 7,266,212 8,467,957
Interest income on designated FETE SRITA R A S A
bank balance 1,691,275 1,007,228
Interest income on bank deposits HRITE R EWA 1,796,671 778,800
Gain on disposal of property, plant HEME - #eER
and equipment, net B EhEl e — 73,617
28,322,561 38,280,587
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6

Revenues and other income (Continued)

Note:

@)

(ii)

The Hotel's Gross Operating Profit performance guarantee income
represents a lump sum compensation on removal of some terms in
the Management Agreement with Meridien SAS.

Pursuant to the services agreement dated 25th October 2003
entered into between the Company and Hong Kong Cyberport
(Ancillary Development) Limited (“HKCAD"), its fellow subsidiary,
a fixed monthly services income of HK$125,600 was received from
HKCAD commencing from November 2003 for the provision of
services by the Company to facilitate the operation of the
Residential Portion of the Cyberport. The fee was revised to
HK$200,000 commencing from April 2006 and to HK$261,000
commencing from May 2008. Total amount received during the
year was HK$3,132,000 (2011: HK$3,132,000).

Pursuant to the services agreement dated 12th March 2005
entered into between the Company and Skillful Limited, its fellow
subsidiary, a monthly services income was received for the
provision of information technology and telecommunications
services to the Residential Portion of the Cyberport. Total amount
received during the year was HK$1,069,654 (2011:
HK$1,069,654).

Staff costs

5

WA B EH AU A (2)

0] G 2 #8E ETEEFIRBRRE R ERABA
7572 B B2 Meridien SAS #) & 22 1735 2 76 5 {6k
A MR S — IR IR E -

(ii) R AE20034F 10 A25 A AR A B H 7 K K
BARBABEGAE(MERE)GRAA
([HKCAD) ZaT 2 BR 75 1ha& + AR R
BHEELH ML EMBERT - 82003
F11 AR S A Al M HKCAD Y HR 125,600
78 7T K9 B TE AR 5 U2 A o 1200644 A A
200845 A - WIEW B S RIETREA
200,000/ 7c M 261,000 78 7T ° AN E B UL
#8585 3,132,000 7T (2011 4 © 3,132,000
BT °

RIE2005F3 A 12 HA AR EER ZK B
A A Skillful Limited 25 5T 80 R %5 1 - AN A
AIRHHEBEER S REEAMARERER
BR%E A AT ARSI A - RNFEE W
%8/51,069,654 787 (2011 4F : 1,069,654 78
TT) e

6 BIRE

Salaries and allowances 4 B ERL 82,640,561 70,658,225
Unutilised annual leave REAZER 1,821,296 1,694,652

Contributions to Mandatory SRHIMERTES K
Provident Fund 2,445,324 2,096,349
86,907,181 74,449,226

Analysed into:

iV
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Directors’ remuneration 7 EEE

EERARAICAREEAR AR
2 BEENEERREINENNE

The Directors, who represent key management personnel
of the Company, having authority and responsibility for
planning, directing and controlling the activities of the £ - P mR AR E mARR R M
Company, did not receive or will not receive any fees or 2 R 75 78 B 1 {n] 3 B =k £ A (2011 4F
emoluments in respect of their services to the Company ) o

during the year (2011: Nil).

Five highest paid individuals 8 HuFMESZAL

AEEALEFHESHALZFELD

The emoluments payable to the five individuals whose

emoluments were the highest in the Company during the T
year are as follows:

Hotel BIE 50,488,840 43,788,216
Operating Centres EE A 9,443,651 7,359,408
Corporate office YNIE) =g 26,974,690 23,301,602

86,907,181 74,449,226

Hong Kong Cyberport Management Company Limited
BEBBEEEARDAA

Salaries and allowances T EER, 10,027,356 9,414,786
Contributions to Mandatory SRBIMERTES K
Provident Fund 60,000 60,000
10,087,356 9,474,786
The emoluments fell within the followings bands: BT 2 EBELT

2012 2011

HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 BTE
1,500,000 7T — 3

HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 BTE

2,000,000 & 7T 3 —
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 BT E
2,500,000 & 7T 1 1
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 B LE
3,000,000 & 7T 1 1
5 5
Government rent and rates 9 EKREN

o7 Ko 2= i

Government rent and rates

— Hotel — BJ5 1,165,200 1,078,800
— Operating Centres — B 140,640 168,726
— Other Cyberport Portion — BB EH Mo 9,473,639 9,835,255

10,779,479 11,082,781
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10 Other operating expenses

11

10 Ett&EEXH

Insurance REaZ H
— Hotel — & 216,800 298,255
— Other Cyberport Portion — BUESH A D 1,726,295 1,898,816
1,943,095 2,197,071
Professional fees E2ERKEHR 7,363,019 10,073,485
Marketing, promotion and miBHERIER
project expenses 13,369,767 17,363,550
Travelling expenses RiAX 734,164 520,925
Transportation Eig & 480,000 480,000
Other hotel operation expenses HAbHE&ES H 48,687,619 42,074,793
Other operation expenses on EER O HMEEST
Operating Centres 21,512,299 13,614,838
Other miscellaneous expenses HizmEy 1,761,680 1,733,914
95,851,643 88,058,576

Income tax expense

No Hong Kong profits tax has been provided as the
Company has no assessable profit for the year (2011: Nil).

The tax on the Company’s loss for the year differs from
the theoretical amount that would arise using the tax rate
of Hong Kong as follows:

11 FEHixH

AR R)AE R R B RRBR A -
BE L EE S TE B

ARBARFEFRZRARERTRE
RHRMmetE 2 ERmEREMT

Loss for the year FAEE

(134,532,727) (128,042,178)

Calculated at a tax rate of 16.5%
(2011: 16.5%)

Income not subject to tax

Temporary differences not recognised

Tax losses not recognised

1 16.5% (20114 : 16.5%)
HEFTE 2 FIE

B R Z WA

RIER 2 Febs =58

KERZFRIBEE

(22,197,900) (21,126,959)

(807,834) (430,910)
(114,143) 251,980
23,119,877 21,305,889

Deferred income tax assets are not recognised for
temporary differences arising from tax loss carried
forwards due to uncertainty of realisation of the related
tax benefit through the future taxable profits. As at 31st
March 2012, the Company has unrecognised temporary
differences arising from tax losses of HK$1,906 million
(2011: HK$1,766 million). The tax losses have no expiry
date and are yet to be agreed by the Inland Revenue
Department.

Hong Kong Cyberport Management Company Limited
BEBBEEEARDAA

F A 8 3B R 2R B SR Tt 1) 2 BR AR R A 18
RN THEEN  EERESHREERR
GHEBEBZBREZERTER - H52E
20123 A318  ARAREERAHE
EiEmMA TEANBRREEA19.061(8
BT (20115 - 1766188 7T)  FHIAE
BIERE - BEASHEBER -

Notes to the Financial Statements

Br RS R R MY EE

12 Loss for the year

Loss for the year is stated after crediting and charging the

following:

12 FREE

FABBEDFARMGKRTIIER -

Crediting

Rental income less outgoings of
HK$9,473,639 (2011: HK$9,835,255)

g2it ARE

MERFA 218 2 & WA
9,473,639/ 7T

(20114 : 9,835,25587C) 147,169,157 145,649,016
Reversal of provision for impairment JRE MK BR R (4 4 1 488
of receivables 147,840 =
Gain on disposal of property, plant HEWE - 2R RRE
and equipment, net FlES — 73,617
Charging 2| e
Auditor’s remuneration Z SR B & 506,000 482,000
Provision for impairment of receivables & Y BR 3k (B 4,327,628 3,455,607

13 Property, plant and equipment

13 ¥R - #BBERRE

2012
20125
Building
servicesand  Information Centres Furniture
support  technology  equipment Leasehold and Motor
Buildings facilities facilities (Note ) improvements  equipment vehicles
BRRER ERRH HORE HEN
7 XERIE RIE (o) BRIB HBRERRE L)
HK$ HKS HKS HKS HK$ HKS HKS
B BT B B BT BT B
Cost KA
At the beginning F
of the year 3,832,061,688 1,152,971,498 230,540,348 59,935,404 19,217,690 49,094,657 797,882 5,344,619,167 5,332,471,399
Additions Em - — 3,860,227 950,850 4,642,949 15,473,716 220,137 25,147,879 13,426,154
Disposals HE — - (104,174) — — - — (104,178)  (1,278,386)
At the end of the year R 3,832,061,688 1,152,971,498 234,296,401 60,886,254 23,860,639 64,568,373 1,018,019 5,369,662,872 5,344,619,167
Accumulated depreciation 2iE
At the beginning 4]
of the year 579,680,937 819,798,900 224,997,053 59,003,981 6,383,340 20,679,600 479,490 1,711,023,301 1,503,607,210
Charge for the year FRFE 83,098,299 115,297,150 3,031,311 818,915 2,016,834 6,401,141 99,987 210,763,637 208,654,504
Disposals e — - (104,174) — - — - (104,174 (1,238,413)
At the end of the year R 662,779,236 935,096,050 227,924,190 59,822,896 8,400,174 27,080,741 579,477 1,921,682,764 1,711,023,301
Net book value REFE
At the end of the year X 3,169,282,452 217,875,448 6,372,211 1,063,358 15,460,465 37,487,632 438,542 3,447,980,108 3,633,595,866
At the beginning F4
of the year 3,252,380,751 333,172,598 5,543,295 931,423 12,834,350 28,415,057 318,392 3,633,595,866 3,828,864,189
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13 Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Notes:

(@)

On 22nd May 2000, the Government of the HKSAR granted the
Inland Lot No. 8969 at Telegraph Bay, Pokfulam to the immediate
holding company for a term of 50 years at a lump sum initial
premium of HK$1,000.

On 24th May 2000, the Company entered into a sub-lease
agreement (“Sub-lease Agreement”) with the immediate holding
company whereby a portion of the Inland Lot No. 8969 at
Telegraph Bay, Pokfulam ("“Cyberport Portion”) is sub-leased to the
Company from the immediate holding company at nil rental.

The buildings are situated in Hong Kong and held on a sub-lease
from the immediate holding company for a term of 50 years less
the last 3 days thereof commencing from 22nd May 2000.

Centres equipment represents equipment of Entrepreneurship
Centre and Technology Centre funded by government grant and
used for the purpose of the designated projects.

14 Held-to-maturity investments

Listed fixed interest debt securities:

13 Y% - HEERFRE @)

()

M200065H228 ' ERHEBRNERE
FERR A B H — B R0 P E PR MR 4R & P
Hh ER 89695% 2 i —IRMELHIRE A
1,000 7T * EAEAS04F ©

2000 5 A24 B * AAREEHEEZERA
RIZRI — oM ((HMRHE]) - B
ZoMmE  AARREEZERARSHE
— WAL R B R E 4R 7 P BE b B} 8969 57 2
Hb—#Ho L ((&BELD ) AQF
WAL NESE -

ELEFMNRES  HEEERARSM
BHE HHEAB 200045 A 22 BFEKE
H504F  HBRERHEI R ©

R RR 1 T B R T 4 B & B I R TR TE
HEMERERT O HOZER

14 HFEZENHAKRE

LT EE N BB E 5

— in Hong Kong, at cost —REBEM
2K AR5 BR 113,039,500 94,148,000
Amortisation of premium (=g ¥ (3,178,319) (3,425,010)
109,861,181 90,722,990
Unlisted debt securities, at cost FELETERES
12K N5 B 349,313,500 424,504,103
Amortisation of premium i (B (4,177,234)  (7,114,172)
345,136,266 417,389,931
Net book amount BREVFE 454,997,447 508,112,921
The net book amount is analysed as follows: REFEITOT :
Maturing within one year R—F A F|H] 179,713,926 305,208,290
Maturing over one year A —F DA _E 2 58 275,283,521 202,904,631
454,997,447 508,112,921
Market value of listed debt securities EhEEEEZTE 110,652,182 90,961,677
Market value of unlisted debt securities ~ JF (&R E A 2 A 344,978,883 419,350,675
455,631,065 510,312,352

Hong Kong Cyberport Management Company Limited
BEBBEEEARDAA

Notes to the Financial Statements
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14 Held-to-maturity investments (Continued)

The held-to-maturity investments represent bonds with
maturities ranging from 3 to 32 months (2011: 1 to 30
months) and are denominated in Hong Kong dollars. The
market values of listed and unlisted held-to-maturity
investments are based upon the market price of the debt
securities quoted over-the-counter. The maximum
exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying
amount of held-to-maturity investments.

The Company has not reclassified any financial assets
measured at amortised cost during the year (2011: Nil).

15 Trade and other receivables

14 BEZINHARE )

BAEZEHBEEREBABTAEMNZE
% HEHHHBE3IE32MEATE(2011
F1E30M[@A) LMIELTHEHS
ERHEEE 2 AR EEZHFSIN
REHMTBERHRE - RREBFE
NEAEERREFEEIHAKEN
BRME(E -

RRBFARGFHEAIREHEKATE
ZERMEEBMBRRQONE &)

15 FEUWRARF N H fth B U TR

Trade receivables FEURBE FX 22,283,613 18,091,011
Less: Provision for impairment B AR RO E B
of receivables (7,635,395) (3,455,607)
Trade receivables — net FEU BRI — /R &8 14,648,218 14,635,404
Prepayments, deposits and TERZRIE ~ IZE
other receivables b & W GRIE 10,115,452 8,430,791
24,763,670 23,066,195

The carrying amounts of trade and other receivables
approximate their fair values and are denominated
in Hong Kong dollars.

The credit terms given to the customers are ranging
from 0-30 days.

As at 31st March 2012, trade receivables with 30
days credit terms of HK$3,490,309 (2011:
HK$3,775,381) were fully performing.

TR M5 R Ak e L At B YR TR 2 BR T
BEYEERAFEROLIAET R

By o

BTEPHEEHNROEI0K -

#H 2201263 A318 & W ER
7£3,490,309/8 ;£ (2011 4 :
3,775,381 70) A30 R EHi %
o —EBBIZERELT
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15

16

Trade and other receivables (Continued)

(d) Trade receivables that exceed the credit terms are
not considered impaired. As at 31st March 2012,
trade receivables of HK$11,157,909 (2011:
HK$10,860,023) were past due but not impaired.
These relate to a number of independent customers
for whom there is no recent history of default. The
aging analysis of these trade receivables is as
follows:

15 BRI R HaEWFIE (&)

(d) #BE(S B H 2 FE YRR FX 0 oK (B URR
BRI - HE201243A318 -
JE W BE 3% 11,157,909 7T (2011
4 : 10,860,023 T) 2 EE - B
WERE - ZZERE S NE T
AW EENTHNB LIRS - %
ERUIRKH BRI DT T ¢

Up to 3 months E=EAALE 7,727,072 8,453,358
Over 3 months HBilE=1{EA 3,430,837 2,406,665
11,157,909 10,860,023

() The Company has assessed if there is any
impairment on an individual customer basis based
on aging analysis of trade receivables balance,
historical bad debt rates, repayment patterns,
customer credit worthiness and industry trend
analysis. As at 31st March 2012, the amount of the
provision for impairment of trade receivables was
HK$7,635,395 (2011: HK$3,455,607).

Movements on the provision for impairment of
trade receivables are as follows:

(e) ARERIEREWIRNA R ZIRER
DT BEZEERR - BRARN
BEEEERITEBS DT AT
EAEMEEFERRE - BHE
201243 A31H @ EBWERZZR
B 57,635,395/8 7T (20114 :
3,455,607 7% 7T) °

FEWBR FUR B R < E B & 51 1A
T ¢

At the beginning of the year F4] 3,455,607 —
Provision for impairment of F RSO E R

receivables during the year 4,327,628 3,455,607
Unused amount reversed RE)FA IR R (147,840) =
At the end of the year FR 7,635,395 3,455,607

(f)  The maximum exposure to credit risk of the
reporting date is the fair value of each class of trade
and other receivables mentioned above. The
Company does not hold any collateral as security
other than rental deposits from tenants.

Balances with group companies

Balances with group companies are unsecured, interest
free and repayable on demand. The amounts approximate
their fair values and are denominated in Hong Kong
dollars.

Hong Kong Cyberport Management Company Limited
BEBBEEEARDAA

) R{EA - FARZESEER
B Ay o 3t 5 HE T LA B AR e L At
Wk IR 2 N8 » AR R
BBRAFPEEIN TR mE
PEiR -

16 KE QT ZERR
EENR 2 AHBRIER - 28RIKE

MERZFE - ZEFRREERNFEE
i WLAE TR EAL

17 Development maintenance fund

It represents a fund received by the Company in
accordance with the terms of the Project Agreement.
Pursuant to the Project Agreement, the purpose of the
fund is for upkeep and maintenance of the Shared
Cyberport facilities. On 2nd March 2004, the Company
and Cyber-Port Limited, the developer of the Cyberport
Project, mutually agreed that the fund can be used by the
Company to make “low-risk” investment in the form of
money market funds or short-term maturity bonds.
Certain portion of the fund was placed into various
investments (note 14).

The fund was subject to final assessment and was
assessed on the sufficiency of covering the full
replacement cost of the Shared Cyberport facilities and
the accumulated deficit of the Cyberport Portion for the
first 5 years of operation from the practical completion of
the Cyberport works.

A dispute arose between Cyber-Port Limited as the
Developer and PCCW Limited, and Hong Kong Cyberport
Development Holdings Limited, the Company’s immediate
holding company, Hong Kong Cyberport (Ancillary
Development) Limited, the Company’s fellow subsidiary,
and the Company (collectively, the “Parties”) as to the
final assessment of the Development maintenance fund
("DMA") under the Project Agreement.

On 1st August 2011, following a mediation process, the
Parties entered into a settlement agreement whereby the
Parties agreed that the DMA should be revised to HK$451
million which will be used for the purposes of upkeep and
maintenance of the Shared Cyberport facilities. The effect
of revising the DMA is that HK$49 million was returned
to the operating account of the Cyberport project.

As at 31st March 2011, the fund was separately
deposited into designated bank accounts. The designated
bank balance of HK$142,948,186 comprised short-term
bank deposits. The carrying amount of the designated
bank balance approximated its fair value and was
denominated in Hong Kong dollars. Upon final settlement
in August 2011, the previously designated bank balance
was reclassified as cash and bank balance. Upon
acquisition of relevant assets for replacements, the costs
of the acquired assets will be transferred from the DMA
account to the Capital reserve account.

17
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RREBES

ZIAE S RAR AIREEE S5 E
B TR FT IR B L & FUH - ARIBEIE S
R - A AEREREBEGE
HAZRM - R2004F3A2H » A AA
HEMNEBR AR (RGBS NER
YR EARRAR A B HZESFKIBIE
MEE ] ZHEREBTHEES R EH
BE% - RO ESBER BN ZIEK
& (BisE14) »

ZBESBEITREE  UiHEES
RERAXNBBELARBZAEE
BERA URBEBEIRERTT
® BNAERNIRESFEENR R
FHEIE ©

BBARAR (BRA) REMAENE
RAF - BEBBGEZRERARRD
F(RRB 2 BERERAR) - BEEG
BMBER)BRIB(RAARZRF
MEAR) RARE (5 [E)7]) - 4
BISEF EHRANBREREECESH
BHREFELRFEZ -

KARRE - EHR2011E8 A 1HE:
Mgt REEEREEESHNEE
BET B 451 1B - BIERERBER
BAELARN - RBIER —E A
490088 TR E5E 0 E BB B2
HEBRPA -

HZE2011FE308310 Z2&ELH3F
BRZERERRITERER ° 38T HRIT
458525 142,948,18678 T MR HRIR 1T
TR - IEERITHEHZ REEEE
NFEREA - WAB LA - ££2011
F8 A ZMfRE - ZAIMIEEIRITA R
BEEFREARSMRTTHAG EEE
FEENFEBRABEER  BEZSTE
ENRNEIEEREEESIREH R
WEr ABRNBEEREF ©
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18 Cash and bank balances

Notes to the Financial Statements
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18 BEeRBITHERE

Cash at bank and in hand RITEGFERFER 46,006,083 44,136,152
Short-term bank deposits S HASRITIE 3K

(shorter than 3 months) (LH3MEA) 100,872,515 170,162,838
Cash and cash equivalents RENHEEEIER 146,878,598 214,298,990
Short-term bank deposits HHISRITIER

(longer than 3 months) (PR3MEA) 401,038,980 118,946,958

Cash and bank balances

Be RRITHER

547,917,578 333,245,948

(@  The carrying amounts of cash and bank balances
approximate their fair values and are denominated
in Hong Kong dollars.

(b)  As of 31st March 2012, total cash and bank balance
held by the Company on behalf of District Cyber
Centres Alliance is HK$5,068,036 (2011:

HK$5,537,920).

19 Trade and other payables

@ BREMRTEFNREEZEER
FEER - WABTREML

(b) AZE2012F3H31H  A2AK
@SB LHAEENEE R
$R1T 45 1F 55,068,036 78 7T (2011
£ : 5,537,920/ 7T) °

19 EARAREMENE

Trade payables FETER R 37,645,478 27,819,033
Other payables and accruals HEip e RIE N EE R 29,334,164 26,011,025

Notes to the Financial Statements
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20 Share capital 20 BRA

Authorised: VETE

1,000 ordinary shares of HK$1 each 1,000 iR G AXE(E 1 T2

HER 1,000 1,000
Issued and fully paid: BERTLEE
2 ordinary shares of HK$1 each 2RBREE1ETZ
A 2 2
21 Capital reserve 21 EXfHE

66,979,642 53,830,058

The carrying amounts of trade and other payables
approximate their fair values and are denominated in

Hong Kong dollars.

Hong Kong Cyberport Management Company Limited
BEBBEEEARDAA

JEAT RN e EL e A SRR 2 BRI A B
NHEREE - WABTTRER -

At the beginning of the year/at F9/FR
the end of the year

5,261,848,390  5,261,848,390

22 Facilities maintenance fund

On 5th September 2006, the Company, its fellow
subsidiary, and immediate holding company entered into
a third agreement to amend the Project Agreement of the
Cyberport Project with PCCW Limited and Cyber-Port
Limited. Pursuant to the third agreement, a maintenance
fund of HK$50,000,000 for the purpose of maintenance
and upgrading of the Cyberport Portion was received by
the Company and deposited into designated bank
accounts. Further to the settlement of the development
maintenance fund (note 17), the facilities maintenance
fund, which was received pursuant to third agreement to
amend the Project Agreement, will be transferred upon
acquisition of the of assets at the cost of the replaced
assets, to the Capital reserve account.

22

RIEHEEES

R 2006 F9 A5 H » NAR] « ER XK
BReEREEERAR  BEMNARE
RARIREMBERRARRRHZIXE
FIEIS BT E ek o IRIBZE = IXIBET
ek + ANAR)ES —25,0008 8 TH
HIEESRIE - BIERE RES [ HIH
BES | WHERRIETEZHRITER
We BEZEREREESNBER (M
17) » BIEE = MR 8IS B 51 8l e
FTR BB eI B S 5008 - (SR E
MEERERWEEBRNEERSE  #HE
Sk Wt ABARNGHEESS -
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23 Deferred income

23 RELEW R

2012
2012%
Government grants Sponsorship
BfHBE &B
Property, Property,
plant and [EQIEN]
equipment Others  Sub-total equipment Sub-total
LERE VERE:
PEL Hit et ET st
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BR B BT BT BT
(note)
(H&E)
Cost AR
At the beginning of the year E3) 5,884,121 48,385,229 54,269,350 1,369,032 3,254,652 4,623,684 58,893,034 57,432,523
Additions & 1,008,060 7,761,798 8,769,858 - - — 8,769,858 12,289,763
Written off of projects completed 2T —  (1,836,509) (1,836,509) —  (3.254,652) (3,254,652) (5,091,161) (8,110,684)
Refund RE - (337,892) (337,892 — — — (337,892) (2,718,568)
At the end of the year FX 6,892,181 53,972,626 60,864,807 1,369,032 — 1,369,032 62,233,839 58,893,034
Accumulated amortisation ZEtEH
At the beginning of the year ) (5,173,239) (37,873,543) (43,046,782)  (894,516) (3,254,652) (4,149,168) (47,195,950) (39,555,303)
Credited to statement FAZERHE
of comprehensive income (738,550) (12,377,682) (13,116,232)  (250,517) - (250,517) (13,366,749) (15,751,331)
Written off of projects completed & #I52R 3 4 —  1,836509 1,836,509 — 3254652 3254652 5,091,161 8,110,684
At the end of the year EX (5911,789) (48,414,716) (54,326,505) (1,145,033) —  (1,145,033) (55,471,538) (47,195,950)
Carrying amount REE
At the end of the year FX 980,392 5,557,910 6,538,302 223,999 - 223999 6,762,301 11,697,084
At the beginning of the year E1) 710,882 10,511,686 11,222,568 474,516 - 474,516 11,697,084 17,877,220
Note: Government grants are subject to terms and conditions specified fisE : BUSRBI& 2 & B DR EBET Bl E+ 2 1§

in the project agreements. Unused balances of government grants
are required to be repaid to the Government of the HKSAR upon
completion of the projects and submission of the final account.

Hong Kong Cyberport Management Company Limited

BRYEBERARAT

REABR - REt BT RIRR RIS
BARRER B BHRIUT

24 Note to the statement of cash flows

Reconciliation of loss for the year to cash generated from
operations:

BE :

Notes to the Financial Statements

Br RS R R MY EE

24 BEREXRMETE
ERERACYERRES 2 He 2 Y

receivable

The future aggregate minimum rental receipts receivable
under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:

Loss for the year FNEE (134,532,727) (128,042,178)
Depreciation e 210,763,637 208,654,504
Realisation of deferred income PRI U 2 43R (13,366,749)  (15,751,331)
Interest income from held-to-maturity ~ FEZEFIEHEEER

investments FBUA (7,266,212) (8,467,957)
Interest income on bank deposits HRITFRF B WA (1,796,671) (778,800)
Interest income on designated FETE SRITA AT B A

bank balance (1,691,275) (1,007,228)
Gain on disposal of property, plant HEWE R RRE

and equipment, net R ER — (73,617)
Operating profit before working LEECEHRI KL LRN

capital changes 52,110,003 54,533,393
Decrease in deferred rental receivable i HE JE W A < Rk 7,102,158 1,830,836
Decrease in inventories FERD 144,148 80,378
Increase in trade and other receivables  FEUG BR 3k K2 £ b JiE Uit 7k 78

1% 40 (1,340,931) (705,317)

Increase in amounts due from A EE S EPNGIE O

fellow subsidiaries N (646,740) (429,571)
Increase/(decrease) in trade and JE A<F BR 3 % ELAth FE ST IR

other payables =, O ) 13,149,584 (4,051,937)
Increase/(decrease) in rental and HPRiZe hEMZS

other deposits i CRd) 3,425,891 (3,286,608)
Net cash generated from operations R RIREE 2R & FRE 73,944,113 47,971,174

25 Future minimum rental receipts 25 RRBEEKES

REBETAIRENEERL - RRAF &
EEKEEERDT

In the first year E—F 109,647,025 139,643,411
In the second to fifth years inclusive E_EFERF

(BREEEMF) 94,097,193 170,330,258

After the fifth year FRFE — 5,774,558

203,744,218 315,748,227

The Company’s operating leases are for terms ranging

from 1 to 8 years (2011: 1 to 8 years).

AR R 2 R RN BEEN T

1FEEFENF (20114 : 1-84F) o
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26 Commitments

Information technology facilities

(note)
— In the first year — s

— In the second to fifth years inclusive =~ — S - ZE R4

FETE B R PR IR
maintenance service fee payable BR7% & A (Ff3E)

13,705,461 20,228,157

(BEEEMT) 32,176,117 3,103,498

Note: The commitment in respect of the information technology facilities
maintenance service fee payable is subject to certain adjustment in
accordance with the terms of the System Operation Contract.

Related party transactions

The Company is wholly owned by the Government of the
HKSAR via Financial Secretary Incorporated. In accordance
with HKAS 24, “Related Party Disclosures”, issued by
HKICPA, government-related entities and their
subsidiaries, directly or indirectly controlled, jointly
controlled or significantly influenced by the Government
of HKSAR are defined as related parties of the Company.
On that basis, related parties include the immediate
holding company and its subsidiaries (other than the
Company), other government-related entities and their
subsidiaries, other entities and corporations in which the
Company is able to control or exercise significant
influence and key management personnel of the
Company.

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed
elsewhere in the financial statements, for the purpose of
the related party transaction disclosures, remuneration of
the Directors of the Company is disclosed in note 7.
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